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Frank was a technical officer with the Snowy Mountains Authority . 
He was based in Coorna for a time; lived at Eaglehawk, which was 

the camp for the building of Eucurnbene Darn, and then spent some 
years at Cabrarnurra . He was at Cabrarnurra until 1974. The 
family used to shop at Su~ City supermarket, and a particularly 
draAatic t ime was the winter of 1964 when the school was snowed 
under and they had tunnels to get to places. 

FP: start at Eaglehawk. As a matter of 
fact, I was never there, really, because •......•... 

b.e c .CUJSt.. 
moved the town about then-AEucurnbene Darn - do you want to record 
it, or -
KH: Yes, yes, yes. 
FP: Oh , I see . 
KH : You are on the air. I am getting it all down now, is 
that all right with you? 
FP: Yes, OK . Yes, well when we start -in 1961, Eaglehawk, 
which was the township near Eucumben e Darn, was being dismantled 
because the darn wa s about completed then, and I never l ived at 
Eaglehawk. I actually had never seen, only a few remaining 
houses and buildings I had seen of Eaglehawk . And I lived, when 
I started - I l ived in the camp in Coorna. ca lled East Camp, just 
across the railway line - for several months. 

Well, -Y f amily were in Brisban e . 
How many month s? 

MRS P: We waited for a house to become available, 
FP: 
Coorna . 

Yes , we were waiting f or a hou se to become available in 
I worked at the Tumut 2 power station, which was nea r 

Cabramurra. Then I went back to Coorna at the weekends, unti l 
finally they managed to get a house for me in Cabrarnurra , There 
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wasn't one available in Cooma then, so I agreed to a transfer to 
Cabramurra, and my family came to Cabramurra then. 
MRS P: August , 61. 

FP: 
MRS P: 

FP: 

August ~1. was it? June. July, August. 
August. 

So it must have been about two months I was with the 
Authority, then. I remember I picked my family up in Cooma. 

I had to come back by bus, I think,! came from Cabramurra. It 
was a Pioneer, Ansett Pioneer, wasn't it, the bus? Which was on 

a daily run between Cooma and Cabramurra, it stopped off at Ad-
cA eli -,e. rul. GI."°' minaby and Kiandra, picked up mail and parcels and things. It 

also stopped in Cooma - the depot was - from Newmn~~-. was~t 
there? 
MRS P: No, the Pioneer office. P,one.er A;rline.s. 

it, 

FP: :r+.- v--~'}~. i.n. '?'--.q. ifP~.-e.n+ pl,:,.."'" -th~,.... I think it was a dif-
ferent place. 

MRS P: 
FP: 

Near the bridge if used to stop. 
Well.,:l'l°th~ depot was there somewhere. 

mRs P: I k I b r L now, can remem er . "now e.-xo.c+l~::f' 

FP: But anyway, they had a fixed,Lciov,'J-.l~n~ yearly, or five 
year ly contract to the Authority, I believe they ran at a loss. 

They supplied food which was order~fby telephone from Cabramurra, 
and the parcels post, from Cooma to Kiandra and Cabramurra. 
Later on, Kiandra closed down completely. There was a post of-
fice still operating in Kiandra until about 1967, ~8 or so. 

There was still a post office operating. 
MRS P: We knew the people well, actually. 
KH: Bill Pa~ick, I think. 
MRS P: right, we knew them very well. 
KH: Did you? And I think he would have had some of his 
children - his wife was still alive then. 
MRS P: 
here . 

One of hi s daughter s lives in Tumut, and one lives 
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KH: one in the Belconnen Valley. that I have 
been to see, the youngest one. 
MRS P: Cynthia. 

KH: That's right. 
MRS P; I know them all. There is Patrick house in Canberra 
named after George. 
KH: 
MRS P; 
KH: 
MR5 P: 
FP: 
stayed 

Is there? 

P-A-T-R-I-C-K. 

Was there anything else wrong with my introduction? 
Ye~, +he. '::ie"'-r· 
Well,~ did~+ stay in Cabramurra until 1974. I 

- or we stayed until August 1967. I know that it snowed 
when we picked up the children at the school about 11 o'clock and 
it snowed then. 

MRS P; 
FP: 
that's 
MRS P: 
FP: 
MRS P: 

We hardly got out . 

And we just got out of the so-called Power Line Hill, 
near Three Mile Lake, 

I thought it was ~8. 
>67, I f . am sure o it. 

It's 

Look up some old photos. 

a very steep hill. 

FP: And anyway we got out a ll right. It was a bit slushy 
and slippery . But that hill there, it was - that~ on the 

present bitumen road. You come in - all curves - up and down, 
and down a few times, and the last clitnb up, that S Three Mile 
1) """ i . ... ,. .. that S called Power Line Hill. 
KH: Oh, is it? I never knew that. 

up 

was FP: A fairly long stretch. about 200 metres. And that 
known as Power Line - Power Line, thats right, because t he 
Power lines go overhead in some areas. And some tourists from 
it, when we mana d t 10 • ge h~ ••••••••••• you might get stuck at Power 
L · . • Th~_ fhou~ht ine Hill, so many ask for odd information. A there were 
Power points on the side of road. You plug in - I don't know -
You plug in your radios for the races, or whatever. And so that 
i s how I remember exac tly, we overtook the removalist ' s van on 
top . And that was 1967. An d then we moved to Cooma, there. 
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Boo,-,~ St t . . . . . . . . . . ree . 

MRS P: Yes, No 1 • l??P!".°':- • • • Street. 
KH : Oh, I see. You continued to work for the SMA? 

FP: Oh, . yes. 
KH: But you didn't- stay at Cabramurra al l that time? 
FP: No. 
MRS P: We went on to Talbingo. 
FP: I was meant to stay in Cooma, originally, but there was 

C,\,c~;t.,,_ble.. 
no houseA I waited two months and I was really fed up and com-
plained . . · So I was agreeab l e , and they had the house availab l e in 
Cabramurra instead. I wou l d have done the same job, basical l y 

Il- r,,eans 
the same job, but I wou l d have lived in Cooma. I wou l d have 
worked the weekdays in Cabramurra, in Tumut 2 power station, 

. i"' -+he:. 
Cabramurra 1he.1f .'~,. township, -and go home t o Cooma weekends. 
But as it was 
lived right there . 

now - it actually was better for me, because I 
I could go home every night . And so anyway, 

I got to Cooma, and I did - that>s right - Jindabyne pumping 
station was to be commissioned, and I went with another two or 
three guys to Jindabyne . Sometimes stayed, and sometimes we 
stayed in the camp t here for the week, which is now the youth 
camp . 
KH : 
FP 
dam wall, 
up there. 

Oh yes , on t h e road to r~Br-i>~r fl-: ... on that - - -
wall, 

Yes, it just after the dam" a metres after the 
is a dirt road going off on the left and it goes 

And we stayed there, oh, it must have been a year or 
so, until Jindabyne pumping station was complete. 
put in service, there was some fiascos there. 

We l l , it was 

MRS P: I don'+ know i f you would be interested in looking at 
a photo of the school snowed in? 
KH: 
MRS P : 
KH: 
MRS P: 

KH: 

Yes . 
They )re only bl a ck and white. 
Can I leave the photos 
Oh yes . 

'ti l a little bit later? 

I am very interested in - especially black and whites . 
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MRS P: 

KH: 
FP : 
KH: 

They are main l y all black and white. 
Can I~ake you back much earlier? 
Yes, when? 

What 's your full name? Have you got another name, 
apart from Frank? 
FP: 
KH: 
MRS P: 
KH: 
KH: 
phone . 
FP: 
MRS P : 
KH: 
born? 
FP: 
KH : 
FP: 
KH: 
fp; 

Walter. 
Walter, that ) s my father's name . 
Franz is the correct name. 
Yes, I thought it might be. 
When were you born? I know you joked about this on the 

When was iti 1896 or something. 
17 Jan uary 1934. 

Yes, you tried that already. Where were you 

Innsbruck, in Austria, Tyrol, Austria. 
What are your parents ' names? 

My mother's name - do you want t h e older names, do you? 
Yes , the maiden name. Do you remember? 
The maiden name was Fischler, simi l ar to Fi sher, but L-

I= ; Sc.h I e. r. 
E-R - and it is S-C-H . F-I-S-C-H-L-E-R.n That was her maiden 
name. 
FP: 

MRS P : 
FP: 
KH : 
FP: 
KH: 
FP: 

Innsbruck . 

And Emma Lucia, I think, wasn ' t it? 
Emma might do . 
Something like that . 
What was your father's name? 
Mi chael. 

And where did you go to school? 
I went to school at Mils, which is 14 kilometres from 

That was primary school . 
- which is now ca ll ed Hall - H- A- L-L . 

Secondary school, I went at 
But then it was called 

Solbad Hall, because it had a salt ~ine, and they used the saline 
solution - oh, it 's a long story - anyway, it used to be Solbad 
Hall . And I went to secondary school there, and tech college, I 



1607 

Frank Pirchmoser 

went at Innsbruck, and I worked at Innsbruck, too, before I came 
here. 
KH : 

FP: 
KH: 

So you were apprenticed? 
Apprentice, too, yes. 
What was your apprenticeship? 

FP: 
KH : 

Scientific instrument maki,13 . . . Scient;f',·c. il"'lstrvme."+ ,......,t:1.ker. 

So how many years did you do that for? 
FP: 
KH: 

FP: 
left 

About four. 
When did you come to Australia? 

cf 1955. We left, I think, 29ff..)fay, 
. ~rt?'.V.--havn . I think it WQS 2 911iJ!aY, 

or five weeks. so must· have got here July. 
l anded at Fremantle. 

in May sometime we 
and it was about four 

of 
I think 3~2u ly we 

MRS P: 

in June. 
FP: 

I thoug~·you said round the Queen 's birthday weekend, 

Well, I would"'+- know - Queen's birthday would,,'+ 
a thing to me then. But I just of 

remember have meant 
cf 

or 19+t."May, or something like this, we 
-ff..o ef 

May, 2 9tli,_May, 
left. And so it was~our or 

couldh1t five weeks here. So I think on" 3rd"July . It have been 3rd 
June, we 

KH: 

FP: 
KH: 

FP: 
KH: 

FP: 
KH: 
FP: 
KH: 

That was on the Sk4ubr~n. 
Skaubrj"' > yes . MSS Ska.ub''j"' 

And who paid your passage? Were you assisted? 
Yes, the Austrian government paid 80% and I paid 20% 
The Austrian government? 
Yes. 
Were yo~ a refugee ? 
No. 

What were they trying to do? Get rid of people, or 
something? 
FP: Well, maybe. know, I was only 21. I didfl't 
worry about politics. As l o ng as it came out here. I wanted 

-4or ye.,u-s t-o 'JO to Sovrh Amo. r-ic.u.. 
tually to go t o South America,nbut I could~~ get in there. 

ac-
And 

then that cam~ up . I had my name on all th~lists of interested 

of 
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people of various consulates and diplomatic missions. Then one 
daY, I was in the army in Austria, actually, it was midwinter 
then and we were just on man&evres, 

" I remember. And I was 
I got that actually gladdened, because it was really hard work. 

letter from the Australian Embassy in Germany somewhere~" It you 
are still interested, there 1s a transport leaving for Australia~ 

I think it was about five weeks hence. 
mander first, actually, for a few hours -

And I saw the com-

KH: I'll say! want to c.~w c,1~r ;t fo, Cl... few 
dc.-ljs, I think. 

FP: A few - it was really hard work, really .... . ..... they 
had to feed us drugs to keep us alive, really savage, you know. 
And so - well, actually, I think it was only an hour or so, then 
I saw the commanding officer. I did"'t know then, if I could 
just leave like this, and anyway, he gracefully agreed. I still 
remember his wor~- he was an old fellow, an old general , you 
know, 
that. 

he was in the German army and the Russian front, and all 
And he said, "Well, I see you want to go. Well, anyway, 

if you find your diamonds, bring back a bagful for us." 
KH: A bagful of what? 
FP: Diamonds . And so I had to walk about four hours - it 
was all snowed in, metre ~of snow - I had to walk about four hours 
back to the~~ where the road was open, and the commanding 
officer's driver drove me back to our normal summer camp, where 
I picked up all my gear and t hen he drove me to the headquarters; 
all the papers were fixed up virtually the next day. In one day 
it was all sorted out and then I left - I got a discharge, I got 
still the papers with me. And then I was three weeks - I had 
five week s , I think, and in one week I was all ready, it was all 
fixed up. It all ran smoothly, 
KH: What did your parents think of that? 

reC\I~. 
FP: I never asked them1 A"My father did~r 
but my mother, when I left, the day when I left, 
KH: I s ee. 

mind so much, 
s he disappeared. 
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FP: She disappeared, crying, I suppose. 
KH: It would have been an emotional day for her. 
FP: She was rather an emotional girl. Well, like all 
elderly European women, you know, they cry a lot and they scream, 
and things like that. 
KH: 

And that 
Perhaps I should give your side of the story as well. 

) .s very unusual, that you were paid for by the Austrian 
government, not the Australian government. 
FP: No, not to my knowledge. But anyway, we had to go to 
camping sites. There was a camp, it was an old ex-army camp, of 
course. And there were hundreds of migrants there. They col-
lected them all over Austria, and we left all on the train. 
There was a train full, I do~~ know, 2,000 or how many, We 

left for Bremerhaven, and we met up with German migrants, and 
o.b c.vf-

there must have been~4,000 people on that ship, most of them 
migrants. 
few weeks. 
left early, 

And we were in camp - I cannot remember now - but a 
It must have been two or three weeks. That is why I 
left the army early, you see, because they said you 

have to meet up in the camp, at such and such a date, you have to 
have innoculations and papers and stuff. You know, you had to 
have a pass for all the injections, a yellow pass, with the black 
H - remember that one, the International Health 0rganisation had 
their own pass. All the innoculations are registered in there. 
I still have that somewhere. Plus, you know, my travelling pass 
and papers and bits and pieces and so on . And we had to sign, 
for the Austrian government, we had to sign a piece of paper, 

that's why I know ~aot, or something like that they paid - that 
we write them , or fill in forms . That is right, they gave us 
form s , I think, two forms. The first form was sent in, 
I think, six months after we got here, and the second form a year 
after. It was a pre-printed form . You just ticked off "do you 
work in your promi s ed job?" tick, yes, no. "Are you happy?" -no. 
"Do you get the money you were promised?" a nd all that. And none 
of us worked in the jobs we were supposed to work. None of us . 
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KH: 

FE: 
KH: 

FE: 

Did You have to work here for two years? 
Yes. 
You were obligated . 
But we didn't worry about that. We were supposed to 

work at the same job that was given us at first, for two years. 
KH: Where did you land in Australia? 
FP: In Fremantle. That where the boat landed. And then 
we went over to Melbourne. 
KH: 

FP: 
KH: 

FP: 

By train? 

No, on the boat still. 
On a boat. 
On the same boat. And then we disembark, That was a 

fiasco, That must have taken a time for us to get off the ship. 
KH : Why was that? 
FP: I don't know. Customs, or something, and queues of 
people with suitcases, in lines. I think we got there about 9 in 

Wt.. 
the morning and about 5 finallYAleft the harbour area. And 
they had to put us on the train, I can't remember how we got on 
the train. 
somewhere. 

I think that was - the train was there on the jetty 
It was near the harbour area. And then they took us 

to Bonegilla. We got there, I think, about 2 in the morning, or 
We so. We travelled all night, and we got to Bonegilla finally. 

stopped somewhere half way, I would say, and we had refreshments 
consisting of mutton chops. I still can smell it -
go like this, "What's that funny smell?" And ,c,r:;'::~'tl',s., oh, 
terrib l e. 
KH: Why don't YOU like mutton? 
MRS P : Oh, never. 
KH : it 

You don't likel\either? 
FP: Well, it smell~ peculiar 
MRS P: Oh, I wouldn't eat mutton, no. 
KH: Do YOU mean no chops? 
MRS P : No, we never eat - in fact, never. 
KH: Cutlets , I'll eat . 
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MRS P: Never. Occasionally. Frank will eat leg of lamb, but 

not mutton. But very rarely. Not many Europeans do that I know. 
Very few eat lamb. 

KH: 

MRS P: 
FP: 

No. they do,,'t · have roa s ts very much, no. 

Oh, roasts - - -
But these were f\1+ roast. there were sausages. too. 

don't know. but the whole thing smelled the same, anyway. But, 

see.I had eaten horse - we. had eaten horse, goat - quite a lot 

of goat. The usual beef and calf and so 01·,. But I had never had 

I 

sheep before. And so anyway we did~~ none of 

because everyone said. "What's that funny smell? 
us. 
Oh, 

apparently, 
it's the 

food that smells. I wonder what they put in there?" 
KH: 
that. 
MRS P: 

I think my parents would have a similar feeling about 

The older generation. 
KH: Yes . Roasts - I love chops. 
FP: Well. I didn~ mind eating the~. But that's 
had, actually) e.ve.r.~o.l~ c,,.ftu. 

MRS P: 
t hey h a d. 

But yo u said y o u had n o choice, rea lly. That 'S 

what we 

all 

FP: No , well, they put us - I can4 remember how many 
blanke t s we had. I think three, those blue blankets and those 
a rmy - those farm gate s . ~S. br.l;\$-kt-\ds you know, those.> fa..,,.., ~o...fes'? 
KH: Oh ye s , the old wire frame 
FP : Yes, ju s t a rhomboid s hape wire mesh with the waterpipe 
fr a me a nd four legs . 
KH: How long' did you s pend in Bonegilla ? 

FP: I do~t rea lly remember. Longer than s ome of them. 
~l\) 

Some only were there aAday s . 

KH: Yes, we had 10 day s , I th i nk. That was short by com-
par i s o n to others . 

FP: Yes , I can't really tell becau s e f o r me then time did 
n o t exist . I just tried to survive the best as possible, a nd 
t ook in a ll the imp r ession s , see . 
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KH: Well, talking about impressions, can you think back to 
what you knew of Australia before you came? 
FP: Yes. 

KH: What sticks out in your mind? 
FP: Well, we saw a film which I have seen twice since here. 
It was calledkThe Overlanders~ black and white movie, quite good . 
KH: 
NRS P: 
FP: 

KH: 
FP: 

Robert Mitchum? 
Chips Rafferty. 
No, Chips Rafferty, yes. 
"h "Th,! "h,·,AtO~" A~ -\J • f' • • • • • ._.;, , V\ I I I -

It was an Australian movie produced here. And when the 
Japanese were threatening to land at Darwin or somewhere, or they 

Wot.,/d. 1 thought-fhtJ~ s o they drove thousands of cattle, a s far as to 
KathA~ine, and t hat is what basically the movie was about. And 
it showed scenery and all that. And that ~s a bout - tha t 1s 
right - our class teacher I think education was very good we 
received. Geography was o ne of my favourite subjects, and I knew 
virtually everything about most countries of the world, But 

t hen, just about when we came to Australia, the teacher said, "We 

sho w movie, an Australian movie. 
a bout our country." And she said, 

Take it in. it tell s YOU a l o t 
"Well, ba s ically, it 1s like 

a saucer. I ' . t .s high on the outside and the· centre is lower than 
the s e a level," and all thi s. And lots of it - there is certain 
things like that. We knew the basic things , but they didn4 
tell us a bout kangaroos running around in Sydney and things like 
this, beca use I think we had a thorough educa tion, after wha t the 
Yank s . . . . . . . . . . . . stuff like thi s . So that 1s about all. I 
ha d a fair i dea of what t o expect . 
KH: Did YOU kno w that Australia had snow? 
enoug h f o r snow ? 
FP: No , I do l'l1t think I did, really. Because I wo uld 
have bro u g ht my s ki s , m~ ski equipment. Well, pe rhaps no t, be-
cause 

the m, 
I had two sui tca s es full, a nd had to stamp on them t o shut 

how ;~ is. 
y o u k n o w~ I r emember I h a d two do uble- brea sted suits with 
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me, and I couldn 'f- wear them on the boat, 

at me, because they didn~ know - they didn4 

double-breasted suits, and th~tcut, I suppose. 

everybody looked 
have at that time 
So I flogged them 

at a pawn shop, I think it was, in Geelong. From Bonegilla I 

went back to Geelong. That was my first job, in Geelong, at the 

Ford Motor Compan~ On the assembly line. And so I flogged a lot 

of gear down there at Geelong, and I did~'t want t o be, s ort of 

too distinct from the rest of the people, that~ why I flogged 

them - carrying my two suitcases full of junk around was too much 

for my liking. 
KH: 

FP: 
KH: 

Did you go to another migrant camp after Bonegilla? 

No. 
How did you find Bonegilla? Apart from the mutton, was 

there anything else that stands out? 

FP : Well, actually no different from any other camp. You 

s ee we had been on the other side in Europe in Salzburg in the 
c amp too, for about a week, for a few weeks. And I didn4 find 

it to6 different. 
corrugated iron, 

The buildings were different here. They were 

corrugated roof, elevated floor. Whereas over 

there they were more refined, to some e x tent. We had - I do,,'t 

know what the walls were- double p laster boa rd or something, or 
fibro or whatever, compared to the corrugated sheeting here. I 

here.. 1 had never s een corrugated iron befo re until I came~ It wasnt 
u s ed a t that s tag e in Europe anywhere. Or water pipe for fenc-
i ng, it wa s ,~t , used. 
MRS p: Q<: ,oyf;~o.u,s~?. 

FP: Well, toilets ye s . But not that type o f toilet anyway, 

Thunderboxes! 
KH: 

FP: 
diff erent. 

A l o ng drop. 
Well, it was a different country, and mo s t of it was 

I That 5 what I wanted it to be. That is why I c ame 

here, s ee, I did not complain about it, and neither of the othe r 
guy s did. We were a ll s ingle fellow s . You sort of join up in a 

g a n g . We were all f e llow s with similar opinio n s of the s i t ua-
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tion, and we sort of soon find each other. And YOU go out 
together to the movies and so forth. And you form a gang. 
KH: 

FP: 
Did YOU find it hard to learn English? 
Not at all. 

KH: You learned it at school, did you? 

FP: Well, not really. In high school we did, let me see, 
. did 

one year, I think, we~English. It was French mostly, three years. 
One year, but that was the first year. I had forgotten most of 
it. But in Bonegilla they had these classes and I went once. 

Tu"+ wa s more or less the +est. What I speak now I taught myself. 
I never went to a - I was an avid reader. I read - that'.s how I 
started learning really. When they put us at the first job 

#iE- pin of-
the re, they put us - at~FordA- with a Ford car, a Falcon I sup-
pose they were called then, the big 6 cylinder Ford - picked us 
up at the railway station from Bonegilla, once we got to Geelong, 
and dro ve us around to the various boarding houses, found u s 
p l aces, because none of u s could speak English, see. Well, some 
were better than others. But I was pretty lousy . And I did~t 

+he.n, 
wo rry about it t o o muc h~ And so they found us boarding houses 

Th~,·e .,.,.,_re. five o f u s , I think, in the car. And one guy went to a 
private place and the remaining four went t o another 
boarding hou s e~n~ there were a total of 11 there then. That was 
• • • • • • • • • • • • • •, .......... Avenue,, Geelong. I c a nnot remember the 
ho u s e number, very old place, double brick rooms, I don't know 
ho w ma ny r o om s , a ce 11 a r, e-ve.r~thi • 

wo rk, and I got l o st on the way ho me. 
And next day we sta rted 

tion s . 

English, 

d ·~ But I coul ~a s k direc-
I thought that · > s it, the day I'n, s tartJoj learning 

And then I went through it, three months, and then I 
knew most of it . I could s peak better in three mo nths, I 

rec k o n, like that Spaniard does after 20 years. 
MRS P: Or o ur neighbour . 
FP: And I c ould converse reasonabl y . I h a d a bit of 
t r ouble s o metime s thinking of wo rd s , and a ll tha t. Of t h e c o urs e 
the a ccent ......... sort of d i s appear s . Bu t e ven if the a ccent 
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disappears, you ~re still a wog, you know. It makes no dif-

ference. So I sort of got used to - I' . m still a wog, ! look 

like one, I have to have a facelift and all that. 

different, I have to look different. 

Not just speak 

f'ftRS P: I tell you something, Our son ltve~ in Braid-

wood and he introduced Frank to his boss's wife. And she said to 

our son, "Carl, got an accent." How could he? He 

was born here. 

KH: And then after Geelong, you went to Brisbane, 

FP: Oh no, I had a few jobs in Geelong, see. After six 

months with the Ford Motor Company it was just" assembly 
work, was sort of .....•. They put me there more or less as a 

relief. When somebody was sick I had to do their job. se~r was 

in the metal industry, qualified, I knew how engines worked and 

all that. You see, it was a motor assembly plant. They just had 

opened that, I believe, the motor assembly plant - V8s - the V8 

motor 

KH: 
FP: 

Ford engines. 
Yes, right, 
And when we came there, about 20 of us from the same 

ship, we got there. There were electricians and all kinds of 

people, and they stuck them there assembling gear boxes. None of 

them in their promised occupation. And from 20 to 90 was in a 

week, we went. From 20 engines to 90. And then 100 in another 
week. They did~t give us a bonus or anything, really, they 

more or less exploited us. And after 6 months I was confident 

that I could find my way around the country, I spoke enough 
. Hod.V 

English, and I took off. I still hc:ve th~ badge,.. ery high 

security, you had to show your badge, like a New York policeman, 
a big silver badge. And I took off. A few had already left 

F .J.L hnve. 
before me, and Q .cPIJr.ss!-,<JI( "Vlt.o.¾~ WO\.~d/\left shortly after, and they 
got a few other jobs around Geelong. And then I took off to - I 

wanted to see the country, so I went up to Cairns, No, I flew 

from Melbourne to Brisbane, I flew, And then I caught the Sun-

lander, I think it was called - no, to Sydney . Oh well, maybe I 
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+he.." 
was in Sydney for a day or two, and then to Brisbane. And~a few 

days in Brisbane, and then I went to Cairns. I took the Sun-
lander from Brisbane to Cairns and I had a friend there. I lived 
in the same place with him - we went to school. He was a bit 
older than me, he was in another class. 
had been there about four years by then. 

But I went up there. 

I met him in Cairns 
he 

but there was no work, no employment, except cutting cane, which 
he had done at one stage. 
Railways as a fettler. 

So I got a job with the Queensland 

KH: That 1 s a bit of a twist. 
MRS P: And him being in the sun, with his colouring. 
FP: It was a place called Bullock Creek near Almaden, North 
Queensland . That was the exact address. And I always had Max 
with me - it took me about two days to get there on the plane. 
Right at the end, another 40 kilometres on the plane, then 
finished, near the Gulf of Carpentaria there virtually. Well, I 
got there, there was another place, I got off at the wrong sta-
tion . I can'+ remember now, that place. 
off, got all my gear, 

But anyway, once I got 
and 

bags and sleeping bag and stuff, AI spoke to 
the guys. They say, "No. We want a fellow too", they said. 
There were four-man gangs in the little hut there at the side of 
the railway station, making up 60 miles, I think it was, of 

track.40 miles one side of the hut, and 20 the other way. And 
then there was another little hut with four guys, And of course, 
You know, they were all semi-permanent guys, they stayed there a 

few weeks or a few months and then took off, and they always 
wanted people. But anyway, I didn'+ like it there anyhow. So I 
went to my proper destination the next day on the next train. 
There were, I think, three trains a week, or something. And it 
was lucky there was another train the next day. And I went up to 
Bullock Creek and I stayed there for about 9 months. The food 
You had to order by telephone . No we didn1+ by telephone -
we send it in written - on the train. And then a week later it 
came out again. We had telephone facilitie s there. We were 
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quite well off. actually. because we had a 60,000 gallon water 
tank, where the steam engines pulled in to fill up with water 
and there was a three mile - I have to talk in miles because in 
those days it was miles and it is too awkward to convert. There 
was a little creek about three miles away, and a few times a week 
one of us would go there, start a little diesel engine-driven 
pump to fill the big tank up. And we had plenty of water for 

showers and all that. It was much better than some of the other 

places. And I had a hammock then. I bought an American army 

jungle hammock. It was mosquito nets all round it, a water-
. pr-cof roof on top, and you strung it out under the water tank, 

and it was beautiful and cool there always. And I slept in 

there most of the summertime. Water, YOU did~1 have hot water 

there. because it was all solar water heating. You see, now 
Co.n~rro., 

there Js a big fuss in" solar heating. We had it then. 25 years 
ago. 
MRS P: 
FP: 
much. 

It was even that hot that you couldn'r 
25. 30, Frank. 

stand under it. 

I am a bit on the easy side. I don't want to brag too 
So you had to let it cool off actually. The first few 

metres o f waterpipe - they were near the surface, they got really 
boiling hot. You had to let it run until it cooled down a bit. 
KH: 
FH: 
MRS P: 
KH: 
MRS P: 
KH: 
FP: 

And when did you meet your wife ? 
That was a few years later. 

;57 and we were married in 158. 

1957 • .. So we Jll jump on now to the Snowy Scheme. 
Or you >11 be there for a week. 

What was~ your first job on the Snowy Mountain Scheme? 
The first job. Well. basically it wa s commissioning -

what did they call it- I suppose commissioning - .... ri:-e.~testing 
commissioning of the instrumentation at Tumut 2 power station. 
That was the first job. And - that right - the guy that was 
supposed to be - that was the fir st Christmas - it must have been 
Christmas I 

61. then. There was one alter-
nator running, I think. and they wanted somebody over Christmas 
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on standby, that was for 5 weeks or so. 

That was my first taste of maintenance. 
And I took that over. 
That was just in between 

more or less. over Christmas. 
months previously. so I did 

I sort of had only started 6 

mind, whereas that guy who had 
previously done it, he wanted to go away on holidays. So a few 
weeks I had to stay there during the holidays and all that, on 
standby in case there was a breakdown. 
KH: 
FP: 

And how did you get a job on the Scheme? 
I applied for it. 

KH: You heard about it elsewhere? 
etAJrs<1... 

FP: Yes. that was if"\ f>r•.S~'!o.e,.of~then after - many jobs. 106 

different jobs after I turned up in Brisbane. I was in the army 
tht!n , right? In the Australian Army. And then I got discharged 
there after ........... and I was looking for a job 
MRS P: Well, I mean to say. you had to join the Army to be 
recognised in your trade here. at that stage. 
KH: Oh, is that right? 
FP : Basically, yes. Well, I still wa s ~t - and so anyway, 
I saw - I don't know where now in the newspaper. I suppose 
KH: That >s interesting. To get accreditation. if you 
joined the Au s tralian Army for a period, that was OK? Did you 
have to do some refresher courses while you were in the Army? 
FP: Well no. Actually. I had a so-called co-enlistment, 
they called it. I was fully recognised. And they had got 

I think that ;s 13, or some-various grades in each rank, right ? 
thing, they call it stars, I think. Say. a private can be either 
a Star One or a Star Th,·ri?~,"' or any star in between. It depends on 
his skill. Say, if he is a marksman, he may get two s t ars . If 
he has first aid he gets an extra star. If he is a high-speed 
drummer, or something, another star on the list. right. In any 
rank, General. Private, or in between. And I enlisted with all 
the stars. full-star rating. And the darn instructors 
everybody must - which is one good thing. 
one recruit training battalion in Kapook~ 

Everybody has to go to 
So that 's basic 
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training, British military standard training, you kno w, you march 
differently, Every army has different drills, you see. And al-
though I had been in the army before and knew most about it, but 
the drill was entirely different. 
ferently and all tha t~ . . .. . . 

You see, you marched dif-
So they instruct us there, 

they saw my papers, naturally, and they were jealous, because I 
~ot more pay than they had. You see, I was a _ ~ull- star rating, 
And well, actually, I had an interview, that ~s what they call it 

there. One of t _he guys there - I don 't remember now how I got 
in the army I must have applied, of course, somehow. Well, 

anywa y, I had an interv iew there and they gave me a few gues-
we,e ho.ppj ~ i th m~ /',\flSwUS 

tions ,<-\"\d -~~'3 .,.,. . so they put me in. But it took about 8 months. 
They s earched all my background for security clearance. They 

went to Europe - my old mother was a bit upset. She thought, YOU 

kno w, I had robbed a bank or something, when the police turned up 
with inquiries. 
have you done ? 

And mo nths later, I found out. She said, "What 
The police were here, and they ask after you." 

And that happened several times. I had another security 
clearance a couple of year s ago and the same thing happened 
again. 
MRS P: 
KH: 
FP: 

KH: 

MRS P: 
FP: 
KH: 
FP: 

They wanted my clearance as well, 
Recently? 
Ye s , abo ut two years ago . So whenever you g et the - -

I s that because you were in the Austrian Army ? 
No, the p o sit ion, here, to do with - - -
No, 

It ?s very far-reaching. 
Oh ye s , And I see now - if the spies, they are all 

l"I «Jhl-? 
done with t o p s e c urity cleared,~ I mean, mine was only the lowe s t 
level s e c urity, But all the s pies , they get really into the 
classified information, top sec ret information, they are the 
s pies , n o t the little fry. The clea ning woman c an b e guard o f 
the gar bage cans , a nd s ometime s have an info rma tion ,s,oyr_(~; ... I t 
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is all a farce, really, But I believe whenever you want a new, 
a higher security rating, there are various grades of security. 
The lowest is Confidential and then maybe it's C1assified, I 
think, is the next one; then Secret, then ·Top Secret, and cipher, 
and so on. And so whenever we go to another one, they go right 
through your background again. 
KH: 

MRS P: 
FP: 

You would think once was enough, 
You would think so. 

Yes, but I believe that I would never get a top 
security rating, because I have relatives in Europe, see. And if 
you can think of the implications, that if I, for instance - not 
that I would ever be in the position, it )s all a fiasco, it >s, a 
farce, really - it makes me vomit to think of the stupidity 

>s the bureaucracy, But, if there was a of it all. But that 
war, for instance, and say, I would have to fight, maybe, again; 
I ha~~ t o drop bombs in Innsbruck, s omewhere, where my mother 
lives, I would refuse to do it, because my relatives are there. 
So mething like this. 
MRS P : 
FP: 
clearance. 
KH: 

That Js getting off the beaten track. 
That . is why I would rioivu- get a top security 

Going bac k t o the Snowy Mountain s Scheme - did you like 
working on the Snowy Scheme? 
FP: Ye s , sometimes it wa s fun, espec ially on pay days, 
MRS P: Don't be stupid. You've.. often said it was a well-run 
organisatio n, s.i'~.e -4:ht.n. 

FP: Yes, Well, I have had many jobs and positions, and 
been around the place, and I reckon it was the best run - well, 
it was then, I d on't know n o w - the bes t-run organisation I h a ve 
eve r wo rked for, in every re s pect. 
KH: Really ? 
FP: By far and wide, 
MRS P : It took yea r s , pro bably, to come to that conclu-
sion. 
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FP: Well, I was young then, and I didn'~ appreciate it. 

But now I have come to the conclusion - in every respect, the 
best-run. 
MRS P: And I enjoyed living there. 
place to live and bring up children. 

It was really a terrific 
We went there with the baby 

and a toddler. 
it. 

It really~s a very good place to live. I loved 

KH: This is to Cabramurra? 
MRS P: 
place. 
KH: 

Yes. You know, really healthy climate - it was a great 

Always fresh air at Cabramurra, I would think. 
MRS P: Imagine going there from Brisbane! 

· m,d· 
snow, ,t W4!~ ,, winter. 

KH : 
MRS P: 
KH: 
FP: 

I see. From Brisbane into the snow? 
August. What a change of pace! 
Did you work overtime very much? 
Yes. 

I had never seen 

KH: The money was good, wasn't it, I believe? 
FP: Well, it was a funny set-up . Overtime - you see, there 
were so-called staff - there were the wages and the staff. The 
wages were as it is now. Overtime - the first so many hours was 
time a half, or something. Then after that you get double time 
a nd then triple time. But all our overtime hours were what, I 
think, a clerk grade 6 gets, or something, double time . Some 
funny regulation. 
thing like this. 
double time gets . 

I think it was $6.35 an hour, or $7.80, some-
The equivalent of what a clerk grade 6 on 

But every hour was like this. get 

double time or triple time. But there were regulations that 
after, I think, 16 - not 16 hours - 14 hours or something, you 
had to have an 8-hour break, because sometimes it was really hec-
tic in winter, after a storm or so . There were power lines down, 
machinery blown up and all washed away . Oh, it was a shocker, 

it? And one night we were chasing our tails all night, 
not getting anywhere. As soon as we finished one job, the radio 
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player began, something else was gone. What a fiasco! And we 
thought we would never get home. I think we were on the road all 
night, from about 6 at night till next day, 8 o'clock in the 
morning. 
KH: What year was that? 
MRS P : 

; i~ 
64 "would have been. That was the bad year. 

,, 
Or 68. 

FP: I don'+ remember. 
MRS P: Probably 76 4. 
KH: What was the fiasco? What was some of the problems 
that YOU had to solve? 
FP : Yes, well - that s right, What was he called? 
. .. • •· •· • he was in charge up there, an operations engineer up at 
Tumut Dam. He was supplied by the Electricity Commission for 
New South Wales. The operating staff there were all Electricity 
Commission. There were some staff from Il S and <:. th~1r,, . · 
You see, after construction of Tumut Two was finished, I stayed 
there in Cabramurra, but I transferred to maintenance, which was 
the SMC - Snowy Mountains Council. And the people who continued 
in commissioning, that were in my section, sort of, they went on 
to Khancoban, the Murray One power station was the next on the 
go. 
KH: 
doing? 
FP: 
KH: 
FP: 

Testing 
KH: 
FP: 
MRS P : 
FP: 
You were 

if clo C\..r, 
Sorry, I still have~t gotAwhat you were actually 

Commissioning. You see - - -
What do you mean? Like ordering equipment? 
No. Commissioning is putting equipment into service. 

So it arrives and you have to install it? 
No, no, that 1 s construction. 
Everything was in when Frank -
No. Let me describe it, dear. there. 

all H,c.t 
playing tennis while I did~- tha t 1s why she liked it, 

Pl a ying tennis all the day . 
MRS P: Love.ly 1;f'-c_ - terrific. 
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FP: Yes. It >s much the same as Parliament House here now, 

and all that. And first there was moving gear. First the sur-

veyors started. They survey everything, and then the earthmoving 

crews come in and then~heY scratch around the dirt and push it 
down here and fill it up and all that. And then they put the 

foundations in, of concrete. 
vances to a suitable stage, 

And when the concrete structure ad-

the machinery gets put in. 

all construction, still, Then the machinery is wired up. You 

see, .the concreting is done by the concrete fixers, and the con-
crete hands, and all that, and then machinery is put in by the 

fitters and the electricians and 'ti~ r(~l)~C-:\ and all these, right? 

And then cabling connect up. And then it has to be proved if it 

works and if it works satisfactorily, That was our job. Once it 

was all there1 we tested it. Well, when the machinery came, we 

tested it in a testing laboratory and then it was packed up again 

and then put on site. 
KH: 

FP: 
KH: 

pose. 
FP: 

KH: 

So it was a very specialised job? 

Yes. 
So there were"' t very many of you doing that, I sup-

No. 
Because there >snot all that much commissioning you 

can do, I suppose? 

FP: No. You only do it once. 

KH : Yes. 
FP : But then after every other job, my job would be to do 

it again. ' Because, you know, when you pull a machine to pieces, 

you do the same procedure again. 

KH: So if they install a new turbine, 
Station, they do it - someone else comes along and does it again, 

MRS P: And then once a year, they take it apart, and it has 

all got to be checked. 

got to be - - -

It 's a never-ending job. It has always 

FP: Well, it ~snot quite that simple . It is a very com -
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plex procedure, really, because with these high voltages con-
cerned, you have to be spot-on. If you have a small fault, it 
not like a motor car. You hear a funny noise somewhere, she'll 
be right, you keep on driving. And after 6 months you might find 

fhat-
out~ the fan belt needs replacing because of a loose fitting some-
where. 
there 

But with that machinery, you have high voltages. If 
1s something that is slightly imperfect, and if you don't 

attend to it promptly, it can blow the whole thing out and it 
costSyou $20 million. Just about that time they had that black-
out in America, the first one in history where people were stuck 

in the lifts and all that, where the whole power system was in-
terrupted. 
KH: 
FP: 
MRS P: 
FP: 

Was that in New York? 
In all North America virtually , 
I think it was,64. 

C\f\~ in ut"\dQ~,-o,1nc,\ 
There were people stuck in the lifts for hours,~trains, 

and all that, there was a complete blackout because of l ack of 
attention to detail, it was. And then I remember the big chief, 
he issued orders. We had to double-check everything. That 
definitely could~+ happen in our system . 

KH: That >s what you started doing - when you were emp loyed 
by the SMA - commissioning equipment? 
FP: 

KH: 
FP: 
KH: 

FP: 
KH: 

Yes. 

Equipment of all complexities? 
Yes. 

From tiny little motors to turbines, to whatever ? 
Yes. 

So that requires a lot of - a very wide spectrum of 
knowledge, I suppose? 
FP: Yes. 
KH: Or if you haven'+- got the knowledge, a lot of back-
ground reading ? 
FP : Well, yes, 
KH: Or do you get the manua ls that come with all this 
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equipment? 

FP: Yes. 
KH: So that you can have a step-by-step procedure that you 

can follow? 

FP: No. The procedures were developed by the SMA. That Js 

what I mentioned before. They were the best organised place I 

have ever seen. You see, every manufacturer has to have 

specifications of the equipment - what it does, what it should~•~ 

d o and how it should be done, blah, blah. But the Snowy 

developed their own specs for testing. We had so-called commis-
sioning sheets. The first ones were the white sheets; they were 

the prelimina ry c ommissioning, preliminary test sheets. You just 

checked visually, wiring and all that, that it was satisfactory. 

Then you had the pink sheets, that was the pre- commissioning. 
wtrt.. 

And then I think there were the green sheets, which~the final 

commissioning. The pre-commissioning is, you had part of the 
sections of equipment running separately. And then the full 

test, the full commissioning, was the final tests. And then we 
h a d done. Sometimes :-:· ......... But after commissioning, that 's 

not the end of it . You had to do efficiency tests, you know. 
And they are really scientific commi s sioning tests. And YOU see, 
you are involved there, with plant costing millions of dollar s . 
That 's why it all has to be spot on. It >snot a darn motor or 

compressor, a i r c o nditio ning plant that costs half a million or 

s o . And with overseas companies and all that, they have to work 
i n with Lloyds of London a nd the Bureau of .......... and all 

this, with interna tional insurance companies. Tha t wa s~t our 
That wa s all · b B t th t ft +(' 'St- reon~ , Jo. u ey wen a er o ur ..... . . 

And if equipme nt wa s 
found to be lacking in efficiency as stated - you see, somebody 

s ell s you a turbine and s a y s 88% efficient. and you find out it 
is only 8 7% efficient, the y have sold you a bum steer, right? So 
they have to refund - g ive you a r efund . And th a t has h a ppe n ed 
ma n y t ime s . With the whol e power s t a tion, there were - after 
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running for a few months, or sometimes years even - there was an 
efficiency test done after the equipment was properly tested and 

ir"I 
runAand all the parts - there was an efficiency test done. And 
what I did these - measure - even the water temperature -
measured between inlet and outlet was recorded. Oh, there were 
measuring devices everywhere, you would~•~ believe it. And half 
a degree temperature difference, even, was recorded. And all 
that was taken into consideration of effic iency. And vibration 
o f the equipment, everything, you would1~t believe it. And tha t 
is why I can'. ~ believe - what happens -what goes on now, you 
know. It _1 s unbelievable, the people do1, 1t have a clue. Either 

the standards have dropped considerably, or they just do~~ know 
what they 're doing. 
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FP: Well, there was every second week, we worked Saturday 

and Sunday. That was on maintenance. As I said, after the com-
.fht. . . 

missioning and all that was finished andttpower station was put in 

to normal operation, I was transferred to maintenance, because I 

wanted to stay there. 

to Khancoban. 

I could have moved on with the other guys 

KH: But certainly, for the Snowy - your job in the Snowy, 

your qualifications back from Austria were recognised? 

FP: Yes. 

KKH : And you actually worked in that area? 

FP: Yes. Many of the guys there, they knew, they did,,'+ 

even look at my papers. They never asked, they knew from what I 

had done, because they came from Europe themselves, most of them 

were, even though they changed their names and nationality. They 

didn't have an accent as broad as mine, but they had come from 

there, Czechoslovakia, Germany . Diesendorf, for instance, he was 

there . We had a top notch engineer, Diesendorf. He had some 

notoriety around here. 

KH: 
FP: 

Marc Diesendorf? 
Marc Diesendorf. 

KH: Yes, he >snow teaching in the same department where I'm 

doing my doctorate. 
FP: Yes, well that~ the son of Dr Diesendorf. 
KH: I spoke to him the other day, that 1s right. 

FP : And then , there are a few of them. 
KH: I discovered that his father had worked on the Scheme, 

yes, that )s ri§ht. 

FP: Yes . He was a r e al, bro..in'j bloke, really smart . 
I 

He was 

one of the few that was there at the beginning with Hudscn. 
What J. • s his name, now? I can 1r remember his other name. And 

there were a few of these. Ands~ when you say to whom you 
worked for in Europe, he knew straight away, you diddt have to 

have a pile of papers. 

KH: So you weren' r in the thic k of it in terms of getting 
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dirt under your fingernails? 

MRS P: 

FP: 
KH: 

ment. 
MRS P: 

FP: 
KH: 

MRS P: 
FP: 
MRS P : 

Kobold 
KH: 

MRS P: 
FP : 

KH: 
FP: 

Oh, no . 
No. 

Yours was a relatively - you were in a good environ-
I mean, everything had been built. 

Frank never did any of the dirty work. 
Yes. 
You were the fine tuning? 
Yes. 
Yes. 

I just read a book actually, on the dirty work. Ivan 
what .was it? Men of the Snowy. 

Oh yes .. . So you never worked in ice and snow? 
T - ' /ltS. j Snow.Abut not pick and shovel. 

Yes. 
When did you have to face the elements? 
Every day on the way to work when it snowed. I remem-

ber) what is now the football or the soccer field in Cabramurra, 
was once the transport hall. And there was an office there and a 
few sheds where they had the ambulance. They had an ambulance 
which they had to drive once or twice to stop it from rusting in. 
And a 11 the cars and trucks and so on were. a 11 around the 

perimeter inside the fence. And when it snowed in winter, there 
was maybe half a metre of snow, and all the cars were just sort 

off 
of bumps of snow . So instead of sort of hosing them~- it would 

b~e," 
have been too much trouble and maybe the water would haveAfrozen 

So they just went with the arm quickly and made a 

hole in the windscreen so you could see out, and drove off . Some 

of the snow fe ll off l ater. And then it was back - we started 
usually work at the group control centre, the Tumut group control 

centre, it was known, which is about 3 kilometres from 
Cabramurra, which is the switching station for Tumut One and 

Tumut Two. And there we went to the operators consult~nt; there 
were three of us, special assistants to the ........... guys who 
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looked after the telephones and telemetry, and technical serv-

ices, that was me, And then they said, "Oh, such and such doesn'.f 

work and that does~+ work," and then we went our own ways 

to fix it. And sometimes it was quite funny in winter, espe-

cially. In summer it was relatively uneventful. Once, I remem-

ber, there was an old man, and he went back to become a taxi 

driver in Newcastle. He married a woman there, many years 

younger, and her father was a taxi driver, and he must have put 

him on. But anyway, what I said earlier, .......... . .. ... the· 

guy in charge up there, he put one technical services and a spe-
cial assistance guy together, and he said, "Yes, we can fix any-

thing that way." Because the special assistance was telephones , 

and was frequency channels, and wed~ all the machinery and all 
the other gear that you can thinkDf So we were together. So one 

of these nights we discussed before when we were busy all night. 
Well, we got a call, there was a phone or something, an alarm. 

All the alarms came up from Tumut Two. You see, they had these 

alarm bells which the Snowy pioneered, invented or designed 
first, you might say, all little illuminated windows, with 
engraved plates on it, that tells you wh~'"' tn.e,(,_i~o{(\ f.O.,Cf->. all the 

alarms are up, you know, we have to 90 down and fix it, in case 

there is a real alarm. And they don't know if it 
I . 
s real or not. 

So, Norm, he got a call from me and we met in the transport pool. 
And so we went down to T Two, I think it wa s , fixed that. And on 

the way down we got an alarm - the gates_ control . ci.t T Two don't 
9c work, I think, That meant we had to~right around there, down 

past Tumut One power station, along the river road there, and the 

standby diesel did~~ work either, of course. That ~s why the 
gate controls didn't work. You s ee, all these outstations, they 

had standby s upplies, like. diese l and batteries. And that was all 
normally remotely controll~blt from 5rt11.:p control c entre, everything, 

C\fl~ 
kilometres away, just pushed the button,~the gates opened and 
closed, the generator started, and a ll this. And the Tocrti,~ Dam, 

probably familiar with TOo~~ Da~ too, that was also con-
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trolled by group control centre, up at Tumut ~rtvp control centre. 

And all the levels, the water levels from the various reservoirs 
1+\-4., 

around were telemetred back toATumut, and often they played up, 
especially in winter. I have seen -
h(\d - 1\ lo~ of t\Jl'll'\1.-\ Q...pi~cdes there. But anyway that night we went 

,J 

down to T One and the diesel battery, the ,c,rp .. ,('l."':i':'j •• battery was 
flat. They cranked it, they didf\1f- .: . if it was starting or not, 
so they just kept on starting and it ran out of battery. And 
•··· .... , .. found one of the three phases out, and switched the 
circuitry on again, opened up again, and pho ned up group controls 

see. a thing; it is dark; the wihd is 
howling; the diesel battery is flat. We i11 have to wait until 
morning . Just have to leave the gate closed," On the way back 
we noticed that one of the power lines was hanging on a tree 
branch. From T Two dam up to the mountain there, it ) .s a very 
long climb, and they had to use rockets to string the lines 
originally. They couldn't get there otherwise, it )s all rocks. 
KH: They used rockets, did they? 
FP Similar to what they use in the navy when the supply 
ship comes together, The first guy shoots up a rocket with a 

. · with li'n~ 
rifle, a special rifle attachment," a nylon"behind it. ThQ~ nylon 
line is attached to a heavy rope, and that · to a heavier rope. 
And then finally the power line cabl e. And that ls how they 
strung the lines there. And I was"'+- too sure with the car 
headlights, 

cause there 
but one - you see, they were very low sagging, be-
) s a long span , you can't stretch them straight, of 

course , because the towers will collapse. So you have a sag in 
it, a predetermined sag, that ;s been mathematically determined, 
so you have so much sag for a particular span. And anyway, 
cause of the sag, it was virtually like the bow of an arch, 

be-
They 

swing in the breeze, the power lines like that, And one got 
hooked on the trees somewhere. And that shorted it out, of 
cour s e, that made that phase inoperative. But we wereri'f sure, 

see , we had no spotlight , just the car head lights . 
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And that was the case actually, after. So anyway, we couldn't 

do much there. We went back again and something else - I think 
it was the Cabrarnurra diesel power station, they had three or 
four diesels down there in Cabramurra power station, out of 
German submarines. They were given as repatriation. You see, 

Germany had to pay repatriations for years after World Wa r 2, and 
they did it in the form of motor cars and machinery and equip-

rnent . And those three or four diesels were attached to gener-

ators and they generated 66,000 volts plus the 
? -::-

diesel power station. I think it ;, s 

still there, I believe. And beautiful equipment, full of tools 
and everthing, I even managed to flog a few tools. They still 
had the swastika imprinted on them and all this. And there was 
something on up there, And then we were busy all night. I can't 

remember all the smaller details. But we were working in 
snow and ice. That was in 1964, Again, it was at Turnut O~tA~.-;\, 
the operators down at the group control centre said, "Nothing 

works at Tumut One Darn." They tried to start the diesel up, but 
no alarms are corning~~nothing. Something to this effect. So the 
roads were closed. We had no communications from Coorna, that is 
right, the roads were closed. There was only one snowcat 
operatable and that was at Tantang~ra , that 's right. They 
had three snowcats in Cabramurra. One they lent to Island Bend, 
and that went down in the gully; one was in Tantang~ra with 

? .. ,·, ... and he needed it over there . There was another one some-
where, but they did~~ - have any snowcats in Cabrarnurra. So that 

AndI did,"'+ clever boss of mine, he had the idea that we ski down. 
like to use my skis on Snowy business, in case they get 

broken, see . And so there were the three of us. They had the 
hydrology guy, y o u kno~ what hydrology does? They had a hydrol-
ogy branch too. 

and all that. 
KH: 
FP: 

Right, 

Yes. 

They go in and measure the streams, water flow 

J 
I m most familiar with their work, yes . 

Well, what is his name, now? Bob 
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MRS P: 

KH : 
MRS P: 
KH: 

Well, you po s sibly know Bob ::rQMth"--

No, I 1 ve never met him. 
He lives in Cooma. 
Oh, does he? 

? 

MRS P: Unless he~ moved in the last - I saw him in Canberra 
this year, I would say, I'~.s.a..j. bi-. still lives in Cooma. 
KH: Because I have correspondence with Tony Spon..__a r, and I'm 

going to go down soon to interview Tony, And he told me of a 
ski crossing that he and Bob did from Happy Jack's Plain over to 

Because, as part of their work, they went as far 
as Grey Mare, and then they thought, well, we might as well go 
the rest of the way. And I . put that in my current book, be-
cause it >s a book about long journeys across the mountains . 
I wanted some journeys that peop le who were in the SMA did, 
see . 

MRS P: 
KH : 

Frank went from Round Mountain to Guthega. 
Oh, did you? 

And 

YOU 

MRS P: On his own . And I wai ted, and waited at the other end. 
FP: Oh, I went other places, too. I am one of the silent 
wo nders, you know. 
MRS P: That was a fair hike, but . 
KH: Yes, Round Mountain to - that was on skis? 
FP : Yes. Well anyway, that 

- wnt\t's ::foa"'s hvsb~d ? 
, 11 Bob -~., .... and myself. 

was 
You 

19 64 ? 

see, 
So there was- (3t)b 

he thought he picked 
one, he was quite a clever organises really, 
MRS P: But Bob .. . ... got exhausted,did~t he? 
FP: Well, -
fixed, you know. 

pick one of each and he gets everything <. )(pe.d·. 
I was the electricAI;_ the other one was the 

hydrau lic e x pert, and the linesman, Bob . ... . . was the linesman. 
So we skied d own from Cabramurra, r~rt1y down to Tumut One, and 

then along the !I, .0.0.0.. ~.".'t .... line to Tumut One, all along the 
line to see where the line was broken, or something. It was OK. 
It started raining, That was in 1

64, because it always rained and 
snowed and rained and snowed . 
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MRS P: For 40 days. 

FP: And when we went down there, it rained most of the 

time. And we got there and they have - they call it a head) 
sitting outside, it is a cable coming coming out of the ground 
going up on the pole, and then you have three things sticking 
out, three insulators, where the cables are terminated and there 

are usually fuses, surface fuses, and then another cable goes in-
side the buildings, you see. The .~or(~) head it ~s cal led. And 

you could see that one of the fuses had fallen out. You can 

see them, they are so primitive. They cause a lot of bushfires, 

by the wa y . A few of the councils have been sued because of the 
bushfires they cause. It 's just a long piece of braided copper 

with a sort of a head, metal head on one end that holds a spring-

loaded mechanism in place. And ~hen a thin wire on one end melts 
off, which is the fuse wire, the whole arm falls out, openSthe 
circuit, and the hot piece of wire falls to the ground. Well, 

anyway, you could see that straight away, that one phase was out. 

And I had a micromet~r with me, so we went into the power sta-
tion, 

., 
said, "Well, Ican't-

so I might as well go home." 
do anything here ,anywa½ ~ov 

So he skied back along the 
road, back to Cabramurra. And it was still well-defined, the 
buic:ls ""' th d ...... o .._ e roa , but there we.rt. about two metres of snow. The 

r oad signs were only that far above sticking out. And Bob and I 
. I went in there andAmeasured the 50 volt battery, big, you know, 

• c:3ta.ss c.ells, 
big cell s, A50 volt . measured, I think, two and a half 
volts. That 's why nothing worked. You see, it had been out for 

week s . AniJ. I checked the cable going to the .£?0.+ .l!}nead, and that 
was - had an earth fault on it. So the only thing to do was to 

start the diesel generator - they had a big diesel there. So I 
started it up by hand. That couldn't. be started either , because 

the battery was so l o w for the remote controls to work, I 

started it up a ll right. We strung a piece of wire a nd had our 
wet gear floating from the radiator, flapping in the breeze, and 
drying . And then the oil coo l e r started to leak. They h ad the 

FP: 
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upper part for cooling water, the lower part for oil. The oil 
cooler started 

o.11 
and~the oil blowing against 60rclothes. 

temporarily tightening it. And all these outstations -I 
~was 

forgot 
to mention - had emergency rations, in the cardboard box, for one 

person for one day, And usually, all the goodies were eaten out 
of them. They only left the damn packets of soup and the teabags 
and matches and things like that. But they had quite a balanced 
meal in there. And we got hungry there, and we scrounged - there 
must have been 20 or so half-used emergency rations - to feed 
ourselves, And then as soon as the battery was charged up from 
the alternator, I phoned - I was able to use the phone to group 
control centre and tell them of the facts. 

get in touch with the chief." What was his name? 
MRS P: Joe Slavacic. ~::And then maybe an hour or so later, 
well, he got on the phone. The diesel was still running there, 
flat out. Then it started squeaking - the oi'I · ~fle.,i.,Js .. which 
started squeaking, we had to oil with the dipstick. Oh, what a 
circus! And he say, "We send relief down in a few hours, "he 
say, "Just hang on to it, Frank. 
blah, blah, "just hang on to it." 

Keep the diesel running, and," 

It ' s like in SJP..l•.()3<:o.d.. 
And they came at 9 o'clock with the snowcat. The snowcat came 

Fr-om 7 -0.. ,"1+ o..n~t:l.n-'\. 
back11 so they loaded it up, I remember bhey had a Roden stove, 

electric s tove on it; spare temporary cable, wrapped around the 
snowcat on the outside. You see, high voltage cable, so 
that 's t hick. You c~n't just fold it in your pocket, you have 
to make big loops. "fhey had wrapped it around the outside of 
the s now cat. And steaks, and eggs and all that, they brought. 
And 9 o'clock, it was of course, pitch-black dark "' winte r. 
And what >s his name now? He 1 s there again - Leo ...... , I 
still remember him coming in with the Roden stove, plug it in the 
power point there,and h e cooked the steaks and eggs for us. You 
see, we were starved, and we had been there since about 9 or 10 
in the morning. 
MRS P: I think Joe came or rang me to say you would~•~ be 
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back. 

FP: And it was a Bombardier snowcat, made in Canada. A 

real rough one, it had these rubber tracks with wooden bars on 
it, and with lever steering. And .you could adjust the track 

when you go along the slope, when one track went lower than the 
other, and all this. But rough, you could feel every wooden slat 
go like this. So anyway, we had a good meal; they connected the 

·nr1-., ,vp to polll.1 temporary cable up Qi.;t,t-~\ ~~--r;._,and then we could stop the diesel. 

It had just about had it by then. And we all went home in the 
snowcat . And I can't- remember - there were another two guys 
came with him. 
MRS P: With Leo ,A.'"[f. . . ? 

FP: Yes. Two or three. 
MRS P: Electricians. 
FP: Well, one guy was from the transport pool, The guy 
that did the Cossack dance always, Remember he married later on? 
He was the driver of it. Anyway, on the way up one of them felt 
real ly sick. "Oh," he said, "I ,feel sick." They said, "You ate 
too much steak, or something," • joking like this. And next day 
they had to take him to Cooma hospital, he had poisoning, The 
exhaust fumes of the snowcat affected him. 
MRS P: 
FP: 

who 
KH : 

MRS P: 
FP: 

That ;s right. 

They had leaky exhaust system. I can.'+ remember 
that was now. But anyway, he was really sick. 

It was a wonder it d idt'l1 t affect all of you. 

He was in the back, he was near the fumes, wasr,'-f he? 
Well~ he must have inhaled all of them. But a real 

Ti wer4.-
rough machine that is. ,here~leaks everywhere, And so that was 
working in the ice and snow. 
KH: That was one 12-hour period. 
FP: Yes. And then, of course , later on we went all down 
again and did a proper job, doing a cable installation, and I 
s kied d o wn behind the snowcat . 

Porsche snowcat. 
That was a normal snowcat, a 
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KH: And of course, you lived in the o ld settlement, the old 
Cabramurra, didn't you? 
MRS P: There it is, snowed in. 
FP: Yes. 

MRS P: It ), was 64. 
FP: Well, of course. 
MRS P: Definitely, it has to have been. 
FP: Wnu, I '.m sure, I'M sure... 

MRS P: Yes, that 1s when you 1re right. 
KH: Were the houses heated? Were those houses heated? 
FP: Yes, they all had the standard Snowy convection heater, 
that was a 500-watt sealed element. There was a flat strip sup-
ported inside with a metal housing over it, and cold steel on all 
the sides. 
500-watt 
them. 
MRS P: 
FP: 

it was about that length and that size . A standard 
and every house, I think, was issued with five of 

Four. We had 
rem~Mb<:r. 
They weret,'+ 

one in each bedroom and one in the hal 1, ,·r , 
really efficient enough, really. I had 

one of these also in the single meris barracks, in the wages bar-
#\ei, 

racks, and they putAwet socks and things on it, and they sealed 
off the convection holes, and they burned their socks and all, of 
course. 
MRS P You also had a Wonderheat in the l oungeroom and a s low 
combustion stove in the kitchen. 
bill s would be 4 pounds. 

And your highest electricity 

KH: 

MRS P: 
Four pounds - in pre>67. ]66 was the changeover. 

14 February 1966. And you paid, what was it? Six 
pounds a fortnight rent for the house, and don't forget the wood 
shed, so much for the wood shed, three shillings, was,,'+ 
fortnight, 

FP: 
MRS P: 

I dot'\1t 
No, I 

know. I wouldn 1 

1m pretty sure that 
have a clue. 

J t . .s pre ty right. 

it, a 

KH: So YOU had a fire oh yes, of course, you needed wood 
for the kitchen stove . And I suppose you kept that going for 9 
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months of the year, or so, did y~u, at Cabramurra? 

MRS P: Frank used to always, hj Anzac Day, had to have the 

woodshed full. That was his - Anzac Day, the woodshed had to be 

full. 
FP: 

MRS P: 

One and a half cords of wood, it was. 
can ) 

p 1 us, I "remember . 1 n • 6 4, did1{t we use something 

like 60 bags of briquettes, and they were one pound seven and six 

a bag. 

KH: So you went through a lot of fuel in 1964? 

FP: And once I chopped my finger when chopping the wood 

and I had to go to Cooma hospital. 

the wood in. 

Too much in a hurry, getting 

MRS P: And a fellow he knew chopped his thumb off the 
week before and Frank said, "Careless (~J 9t." And the very nextwe.e.'<,1 
30 stitches 

KH: Swallow your own words, eh? 

FP: Yes. We had an electricity subsidy of what was it? 5000 

units? 
MRS P: 
cheap. 
FP: 

Oh, I should have said that. That 1 s why it was so 

5000 units in the midwinter period, was 

period!;? I cad+ remember. We had for three vr,;+s 
,t three- monthly 

h0icl d d , 
1 weAsubsidies1 ,·" 

w~? I think 1,000 in the one period, and 2000 in the other 
5 cr-

andA3 in the other -something like that. 

MRS P : And the phone, of course, was free, you on ly had to pay 

for trunk calls. Frank once, of course, ripped it off the wall 

and gave it back to them. 
and put it back in. 

And of course, they promptly came back 

FP: 
MRS P: 
KH: 

I was fed up with getting up at night. 

Constantly, 
You were on call? Yes, that 's a bit like being a doc-

tor, I suppose? 

FP: Yes . Don Bartlett was the guy with the telephones. 

Well, it wasn't up to him anyway - that I • s right, Barry Chat-
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field was in charge. 
MRS P: 

FP: 
This is before Joe Slq.yipfi'--.C.~). Barry Chatfie ld. 

But he said - I came down to T One, I was there. 
said, "I have a few bones to pick with you. They tell me you 

He 

ripped the phone off the wall?" ,.Yes." "Well," he said, "If YOU 

don't want o. phone, you are no good to us," he say, He say, 
"Either you get the phone on or you go back to Cooma." And then 
they wanted to charge me with destroying government property, 
KH: You could have probably reconnected it yourself. 
MRS P: Of course, of course. He 1d already pu~an extension 
in the bedroom and here, there, and everywhere. 

OU~ 
KH : So were you calledAmost nights? 
FP: No - yes, at one stage, yes. Because I was the only 
one in that department, technical services. 
there was a second guy, 

But then later on, 

MRS P: 
FP: 
after. 

MRS P: 
FP: 

KH: 

Lobley, Max Lobley, 

Max Lobley, that >s right. He .w e.nt to Khancoban 
And then I was fed up 

You got it a lot easier when he came. 
Oh yes, yes. Fortnightly, we took it in turns. 
And, of course, the calls would always come at the 

worst time , would they? 
MRS P: Yes. ,~o or thr-e.e, ,nth~, o-,crni,-,j· 

KH: The worst weather, middle of the night, when you were 
tired already. 
FP : And I remember that one. I sprained my ankle, remem-
ber, skiing? There was still that rope tow in Cabramurra . 
I skied around a bit, I sort of modernised the controls at the 
rope, though, That i .s right, I even made a d •· a....9 ret rY'\ of·. the 
wiring and all this. And then I sprained my ankle and I kept 
skiing because with the good boots on it held it nicely, And 
then I went home, and I thought, oh good, I 

night's sleep tonight . 
.> 1.1 have a nice 

on 

MRS P: I think you unplugged the phone , And he came and 
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knocked on the window. 
FP: That -~s right, yes. Knocked on the door, I think. He 

said, 
MRS P: 
you." 
FP: 

"Frank, we have trouble in T One." 
And Frank said you could:'11t go, , . 

and he said, "I'll help 

Yes. So he helped me. I had one arm around him, and 

-th~n I had a ski stock upside down on the other, and then I was one 
one leg, like this. 
was my sore leg. 

And I couldn1+-

KH: 
MRS P: 
KH: 

Did you have any pets? 
Oh, always, a dog. 
And cats? 

It1s 

think. All I thought of 

MRS P: 
of them. 
KH: 

No, a dog,Ain probably half the photos there, or some 

Always dachshunds. 
Always dachshunds? And it was OK to keep dogs? 

MRS P: supposed to keep them in the Kos-
ciusko Park. But didn't we have a special - what was the thing 
at Cabramurra, you couldr,'+ have - German Shepherds you weret'l_'-f-

allowed, unless they were sterilized. 
FP: No, they didn.'t worry too much about that. 
MRS P: 
FP: 

But you were n~+ 
No, not supposed. 

supposed to. 
But see, the park regulations only 

came out I remember when they started putting the gates - they 
put up the gates to Kings Cross Road. That was only around 1964, 

~5, or so, they started. Before then, nobody really worried 
if-. 

about~ Everybody went shooting anyway, and all that. 
KH : 
FP: 

Did they? 
Oh yes. I went kanga shooting - rabbit shooting at 

Three Mile Lake, 
MRS P: Everybody did. 
FP: Rabbits everywherei Everybody. Oh yes, and down -to 
0 _ . e.ver!:j . 
~vine and all that, full of rabbits,"evening virtually after 
work. But nobody worried then about the park council, until 
must have been about 1965, later perhaps, they started . 

it 
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KH: Well, the National Parks and Wildlife Service was 
formed ;n 167, h th wen ey became - before that it was the Park 
Trust. 
FP: 
KH: 

So I imagine that was the biggest change, in 167. 

Probably, Yes. 

You seem to be suggesting that there were things al-
ready happening before. 
FP: 
that. 
KH: 
FP: 
KH: 

Yes, but not to that extent. It t was no as ...... as 

So it was pretty open slather. 
Yes. 
Yes. I 1m interested in that, because there 7s much 

more of a tradition amongst people from Germany and Poland and 
Austria, and so on, to go shooting. 
of time . And they probably can~ 

Or there was at that period 
do that as much in Europe any 

more as they used to. But I know a lot of compatriates of my 
father's - that sort of generation, you know - going hunting, 
going fishing, using nets, was sort of part of the scene. So it 
doesn't surprise me that this went on. I mean, here you had all 
these migrants coming to the Snowy Mountains. Here; s all this 

J 
. <\ nd 

wi dlife,~introduced rabbits, and what have you - they did want 
to go out shooting. 
FP: Well, I went hunting in Austria; I had a licence 
there, which is 
hunting licence. 

very hard to get. I had a gun licence and a 
h~ve. 

And I was fortunate enough toAa whole valley, I 
could go hunting with. But you are only allowed to shoot certain 
game, and in the season. You know, it 1 s not like rabbits here, 

even rabbits or hares down in the valley, Only 
deer and - what was the other - marmots. and chamois. But only 
in such small quantities. But what I did mainly, I looked after 
them. I was sort of like a supervisor, weekends I went in there. 
And I enjoyed myself, that was the main thing. But coming back 
to out here, and I know all about it. 

l-Y)~ 
+he::, call them,, - a forester. 

KH: Forester, yes. 

I even studied to be a 
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FP: Here I dor,'t know what they call them, because it is 

not a forester at all, 
KH: No ,-t 1s more like a wildlife officer, or a warden, a 

I 

wildlife warden. Yes, I know the concept, yes. 

FP: Well anyway, I am very sort of concerned about en-

vironment, and all that, although I like shooting and fishing. 
But, the butcher - there was Kenny'sKNob - there was still a 

township below Cabramurra, a kilometre or two below Cabramurra, 
called Kenny's ~ob. That was a township to all the contractors 

when they built Tumut One power station. And the usual township, 

there was a butcher, and a tailor,too, remember? 

MRS P: Oh yes, and a taxi. 
FP: He was a Maltese, or something, was"'-f- he? And he 

drove the taxi too. Quite interesting, really. 
MRS P: When we went to Cabramurra, there was a chemist shop, a 

t · l the. butc.h~r th th t ff. W 11 t ai or, ..... ... , , e grocer, e pos o ice. e , we were a 
the old Cabramurra, of course. 
old Cabramurra? 

I don't know if you ever saw the 

KH: 
MRS P: 
KH: 
MRS P: 

In the distance, and from photos now. 
Did you ever go in there? 
No. 

We lived in the highest house in the highest permanent 
township in Australia. Our roof had come off twice. It was the 
only roof up there that had been, sort of, steel reinforced. It 

had stays on it. 
came off before. 

Not while we were in it, the roof came off, 
But it was the highest house there, right op-

posite the water tanks. 

It 

FP: Yes. The ceiling had a big footprint in fin the loun-
geroom, where, . du,,'~ the roof replacement, one of the workers 
must have broken through, but they just pushed it up and patched 

it around ii-
KH: 
FP : 
MRS P: 

Did you go kangaroo shooting too? 
No, not up there. There were 1"

1-t' too many around there. 

Well, YOU would~~ have had time anyhow , in those 
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days, would YOU? 
FP: No. Actually I never saw any - I only think once I saw 
them on the Kings Cross Road. And I was'r\'t inclined to shoot 
kangaroos. When I was in Queensland, I shot many. So, if there 
would have been great proportions - I was~f 
rabbits, 

KH: 
FP: 
MRS P: 
KH: 
FP: 

it was, mostly. 
Rabbits and hares? 
0~. empty beer bottles, of course. 
We never ate the rabbits anyhow. 
You didf\ 1f 

No. 
eat them? 

inclined. All 

MRS P: It must have been - what year did I drive - I drove a 
girl in labour to hospital from Cabramurra once, in winter, which 
was no mean feat, when I think back, Jvne +h~ first. 

KH: Over to Cooma? 
MRS P: Yes, about 68 miles. 17 years ago, 18 years ago, it 
would have to be. They now live at Holder. Actually, her mother 
is quite interesting, They owned the shop in Cabramurra until 6 
years ago. 
Cabramurra. 

They were up there for, what, about 30 years, in 

KH: Really? 
I 111 give you her name - if you'~ like to - and 

prior to that, were at Happy Jack's. 

MRS P: 
they, 
FP: . L fn;nl<. Isl a"c( B(."d o..nd -thel/\ H°'f'p':j :rr~c k1!> btfure 

No, Island Bend first.~ That was about the same time as 
Eagle-9awk, the Eucumbene township was in existence, They were 
the very first structures being built. 
butcher, C-1+ i<fl)'l)1!i ~ob , well, he'd Sc':j 

But going back to the 
I 1ve 

he say, "Oh, J\run out 
of meat again. I will have to get some more steers or calves, or 
whatever." So he got his guns in the boot - they had a big 
American Fairlane, or something~ bo"t as bi· g as a truck Ad ff )I\ V o n 0 

they took . 
skinned it, 
MRS P: 
Cooma . 

Wild pigs, boom, boom, boom,~~ry~~~,slaughtered it and 
took it back to the shop and sold it. 

I never dealt off him. We got our meat from 
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KH: He would have knocked off some of the stockmen's 
cattle, then? 
FP: Oh yes. 
MRS P: Of course, 
FP: And once, I believe, he had an accident. He had the 
boot full of calves, or something, dead calves, skinned and all 
that, legs sticking up. And his boot was partly open with legs 
sticking out, 20 calves in it, or something, He had an accident 

before ~c!C\~ipql>~. on the turn off to • . Eucumbene foam) - there Js a 

turn off. I was shown that spot, Reg Warwick showed me, He 
knew all the stories because he went to the pub every night and 

I that show they got the news circulated . And he turned the car 
over. There were carcasses lying everywhere, and that )show 
the police got on to him. You see, they wouldn1t have the stamp 
on them, the meat inspector's stamp, 

around Eucumbene. 
He had been getting calves 

KH: He was the butcher at Cabramurra? 
FP: Yes. 
MRS P: Kenny's ~Nob. 
KH: How long would he have been there? 
MRS P: He was there before we got there. Years probably, 
FP: But he moved to Cabramurra then, didn't he? He ran the 
same butcher ' s shop there. 
wasn't he? 

I think he was an Italian bloke, 

KH: 

MRS P: 
FP: 

MRS P: 
KH: 

MRS P: 

Did you ever keep any chooks? 
Oh no. 

Nothing like that, no. 
Only dogs. 

Were there many pets? Were there many dogs and cats? 
C>.. a. 

Yes, most people hadAdog: and~cat Oh, we had a cat · 
at Cabramurra, do you remember? It got run over, Lv~ 
KH: Do you think many pets got away into the bush? Like 
baby kittens? 
FP: I would think so. 
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MRS P: 

KH: 
dumped at 
FP: 

KH: 

Kittens, maybe. 

Were there many -
the local rubbish 
~dof)_'t know, but 

I 'm looking more 
environment. 
MRS P: I don't think so. 
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I mean, often kittens and pups get 
dump - - -
I think 

towards the impact on the surrouRing 

FP: Look, I tell you a few stories about cats. 
MRS P: Oh, you came home with a couple of kittens once, from 
the power station. 
FP: Yes, well, if you let me speak , 

They were half-wild, 
Once1 I shot three cats 

up behind our house. 
the shotgun. 

KH: At Cabramurra? 

too. Remember, with 

FP: Yes. 
IYloSS~ 

I just got my~ three shot 12 gauge shotgun. 
thought, "Oh, beauty," And I had three shots. And they were 

hecv-
reaL mean-looking cats. I could"the lid fly - rattle off our 

garbage can - we had two metal garbage cans behind the garage 

I 

there in the corner. And one was, I think, standing on the fence 
next fo it , and two were half in the garbage,. . I cc-,n . reme. /\'\b~,--: · +h :z 1 t ... u-~ 

5c+ 
I~them all three with two shots. And one was groaning 

from inside of the garbage can out - beaut,·ful, O.• ·--rc: hang'ng "very • .._ ,JV - .._ -,;. (,,.>r-e.rj 

yes 

KH: 
FP: 

three of them, 

You did"'-\- like wild cats? 
one. No. And that was onlyhepisode, In Jindabyne pumping 

station , they were everywhere. We started up the first pump, big 
blockage in the water, cooling water. 

the blockage - dead cat stuck in pipe. 
Stopped the machine, found 

KH: 

FP: 
water, 

KH: 
FP: 

KH: 

Sorry - this is at Jindabyne pumping station. 
Kl4• '"The Nl"l~I;' FP\ t'Nc, ii"\ +n«. p "mf>i"'~ 5:to..tic,n. 

A~ J""'if\d~"~ 9umping station. 1, " ->ee, you hav~ cooling 
like in a car -

Sorry, where is the pumping station? 
Jindabyne. 

For the tunnel that takes the water through the 
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mountains? 

FP: 
KH: 
FP: 
KH: 

Yes, to Geehi. 
Near Waste Point? 

Yes. 
Right, okay. 

1645 

FP: Where the big chimneys - that'Sthe surge thing for it -

KH: Right, okay. 
FP: So I get the cat out, start up again. And there we had 
this funny marine-looking motor housing, made by Siemens, they 
had gl a ss windows, with bulkhead openings. You know, with 
handles on top and bottom; they go inside the - door and out-
side, jus t as on the ships . ......... a glass door. There I was 
walking past one of them, the cat was inside, like it waster-
rified, hanging inside, it must have been under the rubber door 
seals, or something. And I went up to the operator, !~aid, 
"There is still a cat inside the motor, switch it off." Cats 
everywhere. 
Dutchman 

And during construction, Kees von Geffen(?), a 

MRS P: 
FP: 
MRS P: 

Who lives here. 
No, he went to the coast, I found out. 
Are you sure? 

FP: Yes, another Dutchma n told me. And he u s e to 
specialise trying to catc h thes e c ats. They were in Tumut One 
power station, Tumut Two p o wer station, Murray One power station, 
Murray Two power ~statio n, everywhere there 7 s bloody cats. I do~4-

know where they came from, but they were there. And they 
build special cages - you see, Kees was in Africa with the Shell 
Company, and they caught wild animals, and all that, so he felt 
suitably qualified. And they used variou s baits; they h a d a 

• <jOi~ 
trapdoor in front with a string,.. back to the end with a tr.13~~ 
mec hanism, and they had a bait a-fto.th11.clto1f-. When the a nimal went 11,, 
they ma de v ery l o ng cagesto ma ke sure the anima l was right in 
before the d oor shut. They h a d fi s h hanging o n i t , eve ry t h i ng , 
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and they would o'+ go on. 
MRS P: Too smart. 
FP: And then at Jindabyne, Morr•'-5) 

the New Zealander.ALindsay Mor-
ris, he had an idea. 
smart a blood~ cat." 

He said, "Sure ·," he said, " I can out-
So he - on the 11,000 volt there, he had 

an electrode coming down on to a copper plate. And he put a 
sandwich there. And nothing - he checked regularly, once or 
twice a day, and renewed the sandwi·ch, ·th d ff swi c e o , of course, 
before he went in. But then once we had a power failure for 
three minutes, I think. And he went down, looked in there, and 
the sandwich was gone, and the cat left its business behind. That 
drove him mad! "I have to get that smart cat," he said, "I have 
to get it." 
or something. 

They must sense the electricity, the magnetic field, 

MRS P: Did he ever get it? 
FP: I don't know. But they were shooting them. The 
oper ators at a later stage. they f G th came rom u ega power station, 
t heyused the same operators. 
there. 

They used to have regular shoots 

KH: Of cats? 
FP: Of cats, yes. 
pistol, or s~mething. 

And he. I think, had a mu~zle-loading 
He used to practice on the cats. 

KH: They were at most c onstruction sites? 
FP: Most. Then in Talbingo, I remember one now, they had 
steel plate, about two inc t, thick by s ay, two metre s by one 
metre steel plate stacked outside the power station':~1~{. the 
spira l ca s ing . The welders just came al o ng, took a steel plate 
with the .~r~~~>•·· ,weighing maybe each plate, maybe 3 or 4 t o n s 
o r s o. Yo u see they were that thick, we get twic e the size of 
the table stack( ? ) size, and they had unri~the uppermo st one , I 
do l'\11 k h now o w. But I just s a w a dead cat amongst it, with the 
hea d sti c king out. 
was a cat' s head. 

Betwee n the top and the s econd plate, the re 
I just wa lked past, a nd I c ould see the cat' s 

head, n o rma l cat's head, s t i·c k t th · ou, e eyes still open and al l 
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this, and the tongue stuck out . And the rest of the cat was that 

thick. 
MRS P: 

So I doh't know they got the cat in there. 

That :s right. Cats were everywhere, do9s, 
L->en P:· • .• • • problem. 

KH: What about dogs going wild and breeding with dingoes? 

MRS P: The only case I ever heard of dogs - do you remember 
I ('_ • • d I/ ........... s samoyeds were stolen, or they we"e missing. They 01,.-

know what happened - - -

FP : Yes. But one turned up later. 

MRS P: That >s right, at Kiandra, didn't it? They think 

somebody sold them. 

KH : The dogs you could keep track of better. Dogs have a 

different nature, don't they? 

FP: 
KH: 

Yes, oh yes. 
But cats can I mean, I >masking this because of, you 

know, I 1m interested in the impact on the environment of the 
Snowy Mountain Scheme, and so if there are domesticated pets get-
ting away into the bush, well , if this involves hundreds of cats, 

YOU )ve got an impact on the birdlife, and that sort of thing. 

MRS P: I would not say not much. The odd ones but n o t many. 

I mean - the impact but dogs, definitely not. But with our dog 
had we always~ a heated kennel. We still have,now, a heated kennel. 

And every time we moved, the removalists would say, "We don't 

remember you, but we remember the kennel." 

KH: And that would keep the dog at home, too, I suppose, 

having a heated kennel . 

MRS P: 

FP: 
MRS P: 
FP: 

The icic les would be hanging, and the dog would be - -

Another cat that we saw - the one I brought home once . 

That dear little fluffy one. 
I think it was three cats, little kittens , ma ybe a few 

months o ld, outside Tumut Two power station . It was a cool day 
there, and Ijsaw these three, and I chased one . They were right 
at the gate of Tumut Two power station. And when the gate open -
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you had to go inside, push a button and the gate opened_ and one 
of them started running down along the drain on the side. 

(,.)he.rt. On each 
side of the road~there was a drain. But it ran down and it couldn~ 

So I chased it down for a while and then threw a get out, 

rag on it and got it. And Gee 
r'1 pp-ed cv-c,u .-.d i+ 

to put it in the boot of the car ,. 
it fought me savagely, I had o.. ro.-3 

did my business in the power 
station, and when I got home at lunch time, I think, I unpacked 
it, and we sort of got it civilised a bit. 
cat, very long hair and all that. 
MRS P: And then it disappeared. 

It was quite a nice 

FP: No, n o, no, we took it with us to Cooma. It must have 
been about 6 or 8 months later, 

Q. 
we moved to Cooma. Then in Cooma 

we had it~few weeks, and it was a terrible wrecker down at the 
house once, and then it disappeared. 
KH: I have heard that if there were cats, and if thertwere 
dumped cats , they were usually around the local rubbish dump, 
with some of the camp~ - where the rubbish went that 
cats were. 

) s where the 

FP: That ) . s right, yes. That reminds me, we went shooting 
there at the Cabramurra tip a few times. It was great :fun. 

&1,; nd #.e we.+ C tl,n+t.llri ;, 
Where was the Cabramurra tip? 11 Near the air;trip? MRS P: 

FP: It was a bit further, not far from the airstrip. Let 
me see now, they moved it a few times because the holes they used 
t o :fil 1 up ... ,:~ sort of moved on. 
same road there. 

Well, past the airstrip on that 

KH : That where i t still is, I think. Up there some-
Where. You go up that way to go to the ski tracks , the cross-
country track s now. 
FP : I think it wa s o n the end o f the lower part of the 
ai r strip, actually. 
l<H: So there certainly were some cats, and there were c e r-
tainly some of them wild. 
FP : 

l<H: 

Yes . And all of them semi-wild, I reckon . 

So it would be hard - when some of these cats that you 
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saw, they were where you saw them because they could partly live 
on what they could get out of the bush, and partly what they 
could scavenge in the townships and the camps, I suppose. It 

be. 
would~hard, from that, to predict just how many there might have 
been in the bush, that just lived in the bush. 

wild cats now in the Kosciusko National Park. 
I mean, there are 

MRS P : 
KH: 
now . 
MRS P: 
smart. 

Of course, and you would never see them, a lot of them. 
That 's right. It 's very hard to estimate the number s 

You wouldn' t · have any idea really. I mean, 
They hear somebody and hide. But the problem 

they are so 

is, a l o t 
of it, too, people get an animal and they get sick of it, and in-

? stead of killing it, they dump it, and that show, naturally, 
those cats have origi nated in the first place, isn'~ it, r eally? 
FP: Not necessari l y, 
MRS P: A lot of them would have . Yo u know how people tire of 
an anima l , ~ou know, you are better off shooti ng it than just 
d u mping it in the bush . 
FP : I think there are many reasons for that. People got 
tra nsferred and the cat wasn~ around when they moved, and they 
h ad to leave it . The cats, as you know, they prefer the loc a l ity 
to the people , and t h ey might have taken the cat with them, but 
the c a t c a me bac k again. Some funny reaso ns. 
KH: Was it warm enough to have a g a rden, vegetables? 
MRS P : Yes, we - n o t vegetables, no. But we wo n, I thi nk, 
thre e y e ars running , didn ' t we, a good garden award, or wha tever 
t hey call e d i t . Do you remember, Frank? 
FP: Ye s . 
MRS P: We always had nice roses, and that was about it, wa sn't 
it? 
FP: Yes . 
KH : Were y ou issued with trees a nd shrubs and thing s t o 
plant at - - -
MRS P: No. In Cooma they h a d a nursery, but n o t i n 
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Cabramurra. 0.. 
They had~garden club, because you were the custodian 

of the mower, do you remember? 
FP : Yes. 
MRS P : 8vr We always had a nice lawn and roses, ,. I (rH14f\ it wa s 
such a short summer. 
FP: The tree s took ages to grow because the wirrf~broke off 
the branches aga in, even t h ough I shored it up all winter to try 
a nd p rotect them. It too k years for a tree to grow a metre . 
KH: There are sti l l deciduous trees there now, cypresses 
and things, I mean, the houses have gone, but there are still a 

lot of things that were plant1•especially on the sheltered side 
t owards the east, I think, there are things that I remember grow-
ing quite well. 
FP: I don't kno w. I h aven't been there a few years 

now. But if it is like Island Bend , they jus t chopped it all 
do wn. We had a pussy will o w there in the corner of the house, it 
was s ort of l ike an L-shape, the house, on the inside corner, 
there was a p ussy wil l ow, that did very wel l . 
MRS P: And YOU grew it from a cutting. 
FP : That ; 

right, s yes. 
KH: So , on t he whole, it wa s fair l y h o stile? 
FP : Yes. 
KH: And i t wasn't-- all that good for g rowing thi ng s? 
MRS P: Oh no. 
FP : It wa s v e ry windy. 
MR S 

l" S v .,,,.....1t.r, 
P : /\ I can remember some Decembers were q uite c old . You 

r e ally only ha d, I would say, three or f o ur months o f the year 
l,..i/lS tha t i t warm, if that . ,. Yo u would never - you would always need a 

jack e t . Although o nce our d a ughter got bad 
v eryAburns, do you 

remember, o n h e r arm s , one Christmas , which ·i s hard t o b e lieve,at 
Cabramurra . 
KH: Becau s e that whol e hill , I th i nk, was c o vered with a l -
Pi n e ash, wi t h n a tive t rees , I think , befo re it was a t o wnship , 
Tha t was a l l c l ear e d a way , 
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FP: 

the hill, 
MRS P: 

know the 
KH: 
FP: 

know .... .••• • there was all terraces all around 

all terraces. 
You see, when we went there in 1961, we lived - do you 

Duke's Cottage? It _>s still there. Any VIP stayed there . 

Just past the garage on the left. 
No, you go after the garage, it goes up on the hill, it 

goes straight ahead, up on the hill slightly. And on the right, 

just below the road, there 's this old cottage, a barrack there. 

MRS P: Beautiful. And any VIP - while we were there, I think 

- three houses away. 
FP: 
terrace. 
KH: 
FP: 
MRS P: 

And we were sort of three h ouses after it, on the same 

You were looking north. 
I reckon, south. Well, 

Well, we only lived there for maybe less than a year, 

a nd then we were moved up to the top of the hill. Because our 

house and the surrounding ones were all moved t o Khancoban. 

FP: The lower ones where we were going. 

MRS P: You see, Frank went at the end of a job, to these 

towns, so people were moving out. 
FP: The construction people were ~!ready moving out and 

the commission. people moved in. 

MRS P: We were only at that house for, I would say, less than 

a year, a nd t hen we moved up to the top of the hill. And tha t 

first house was better because it all had double glazing, didn~ 

it? 
FP : The first had double glazing J lj?,S- . 

KH: On a different tack, what wa s the country lik~ when you 

first went, in the early 60s? What would you say was the state 

of the general countryside, like, the mountain s? Was it, f or in-
Was it being stance , did you still see stock? Was it burnt? 

grazed? I 
the first , 

you left. 

1m asking you what you remember from when you went at 
1 do and then I want toAa sort of comparison to the time 

I n other words, what sort of changes do you remember? 
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MRS P: I don't think stock grazed in the park at all. But 
they would on the edge of the road, they 
the mountains. 

bring it down from 

FP: 

MRS P: 
!I- ~C\S.'1 1! ff.-!~ .. f~~'l. f .the roads were Pai-kt too . 

f=P-: 
Oh yes, well i·t di·d . .:.... ·"·But I rem b th em er em around 

Kiandra there, in the flat parts, th ey were grazing. Not many, 
maybe five, ten., 
MRS P: Also towards Turnut, too. 
FP: But so, ho.vf_ I seen them a · L year ago in the park - nunclrerls. 

f..qd two years ago. I 
That s right, I have seen them drive 

l hO.V{ around there, 
?,ee.n a r o vnd 

~Tcorr,C\. Darn, 
where they should,,+ "and sc have( drlvf.i\ around 1/'l +h~r~ cv,c( 

I\ you know where the meadows are going into the water. 
have seen them there when we Ad I came. n remember seeing the 
stockrnen on horseback. What ~s tharname of the hut there~ It 
headquarters, just near Thiess village there, it was. 
KH: 
FP: 

Rc...:.--.d Mountain Hut? 6rC\.ct l-e..~ls? 
,lw<-"\Sf\1+- Brt\.n le-:j's 

No,"it was near'Too~~ Darn. 

is 

I 

MRS P: 

Years ago. 
KH : 

On the left hand side where I picked you up a couple of 
You went cycling across. 

Paton's, there ) 
s a Paton's hut there, ne Tc D ar G!YI,.\ am . 

FP: It could be, it could be Paton's hut~ ye s . It 
maybe a couple of kilometres o:f-L'the b"t CT i umen ... . . 
KH: 
FP: 

KH : 
FP: 

Yes, that I • s right, 

Yes, just past where Thiess Village was. 
There were.. still stockrnen in there? 

There was a stockrnen in there. He lived there because . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
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.. really good. It is just that people like to live 

in the past, It 1s human nature. 

KH: Can you remember the name of the stockman? 

FP: No, No, I hardly spoke to him. 

KH: Would you say there was much erosion? 

FP: No, I wouldn1f 
built there was erosion. 

Of course, where roads were being 
But they were well treated afterwards 

with sprayed straw and seeds and all that. And they clung for 

them to grow over guite nicely, as can be seen now. And even 

those tracks, you see, they saw a lot of traffic then, of heavy 

equipment . They had a gravel quarry down near TooM~ Dam, several 

gravel quarries, and the heavy trucks moving in and out, 

naturally there was erosion. 

think . 

But nature consolidated itself, I 

MRS P: The Snowy did a good job, don't you think, of put-

ting things back exactly, if not better, than what it was to 

start with, 

KH: Yes. 

FP: Yes, well the green 1es .u.Jo, .. dd.(\'-1- °:)r~~ . 

MRS P: You know a lot of the places we saw , you~ never 
been construction ye<:l.rS.. ~for~. 

KH: Did you ever see the rivers very muddy? You know, with 

a heavy amount of silt and stuff washing downstream? 

MRS P: The rivers were beautiful and clear up there. 

FP : Jan, don't talk rubbish, you have never been past the 

tennis court . 

MRS P : Did you? 
FP: Jan, any river gets muddy when it rains. You don't 

have to .... Of course , they were muddy, I remember George 

Shelton, his name, . h e was my boss when I was commissioning, 

he was a keen fly fisherman , right ? And talking about muddy 

rivers, and we were just, that 's right, we were working about 7 

at night at T Two power station and . George came to check it up 

from t he river, a few hundre d metres below. He said, " I just 
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l ost all my gear." He said, "They open the dam gates and I just 
saved my life by jumping on the rock somewhere," 
the gates were opened. 

Periodically 

KH: 

FP: 
Which dam ? 
T Two dam. Tumut Two power station dam. It's on 

the Tumut River. That was during commissioning, Normally they 

are closed and there 1s hardly water running. They had the big 
• . d • < ~rne. wnu-e. rocks in the river bed and he was _ fishing 1/\ q. ,f'."'• ,dl""i.. ~ ,. : , Next 

minute he sees a tidal wave come4~ on him. So he ran for his 
life, see. 

he;, .-nd h.-rY) 

And naturally, the water was all muddy, mvddj 

, see. , Tf't~fl,. the same now. -. All that soil ero-
sion and all that, I think that )s all exaggerated, Still, I don1+ 

wors~ 
think it was~than now, really, Since here, people now, 

everybody cares for their environment, the majority of them. And 
they looked after it then as they do no w. They didn't 
deliberately abuse the environment. So they make wheel ruts with 

driv.:!i 
the four-wheel drives - there were less four-wheelAthan there are 
now, of course . There were just a few around, and they didn~ 
do as much damage. But that all exaggerated. 
KH : What do you think about exotics? 

of The Snowy Mountains 
Authority used a lotAintroduced species, They used willows and 
poplars and things to stabilise road banks and so. on. 
FP: 
KH: 

Yes. 
What ) 

s your feeling about that ? Should they have 
tried to u se more native species? 
FP: Well, if there would have been native species suitable, 
they would have used them, because they had their own research 
done in this field. And I have seen, near Tumut Two power sta-
tion, above Tumut Two power station, probably still there, they 
used willow twigs . They stuck them in the ground, maybe 10, 20 

centimetre intervals at the severe erosio n areas. 

interfere with the environment at all, previously . 
They didn't 

Bu t then 
after they tried to h e lp nature there, and the native species. 
The y stuck the se in if-

severe erosion channels - I saw~by bu s hwalk-
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ing in between working hours,-because we had to walk up once -
and they wove them in a sort of basketweave, bend them over and 

and ~.e!lr<?- . . them into each other. And some were several metres 

wide and you can see that the washaways backed up behind it and v.Jl'141.re.,,. 

new shoots shot out and all that. Well, obviously the native 
C\o"d f'lor<~ 

faunaAcouldn'.+ look after it, so they had to use willow. 

KH: But in some cases, I think, branches and so on have 

broken off and washed downstream and colonised elsewhere. 

FP: Yes. 
KH: So there have been other species, blackberries and 

o ther things far worse , have done that in other parts of 

Australia. But, I mean, that can happen with willows. One of . 

the worst ones, apparently, is gorse. 

FP: Gorse? 

KH: They planted a lot of gorse, Spanish broom~at Island 
Bend, and there have been severa l programmes of eradication and 
spraying with poisons and so on, but the gorse is still there. 

MRS P: It 1s that very thick - - -
KH: It 'sin flower at the moment, bright yellow flowers, 

big green sort of - - -
MRS P: Very pretty, a c tually, yes, I know it. You, the other 

day, said, "Wouldn't that yellow bush be lovely near our ti-

tree?" I think it ) s related . 

FP: That ;s right, it was the Spanish b r oom. They have 
nett.r 

them at ANU, I have s een a few around there, near the creek,ASul-

livans Creek, there . 
KH: 

FP : 
green 

KH: 

MRS P: 
KH : 

Yes, they could have. 
I tho ught, that ' s nice, the yellow with the very deep 

It ha s become a real pest in s ome parts of Australia. 

T 
) . hat s right. 

It has really taken off and it pushes out the native 

species in some areas . 
FP : Yes, well I don 't see that necessarily as a detriment 
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to push out the native species, because sometimes the native 

species are a pest too, like the ti-trees, for instance, around 
Lake Blowering and J'ouAC\MC\. you know, the ti-tree scrub - only 
the dachshund can get through under it. 
KH : 

MRS P: 

FP: 
MRS P: 

Yes. 

But I don 't think it ) 
called ti-tree scrub, Frank. 

It has blue flowers, it gets really dry and thick. 
I don't think that 1s the proper name. 
But that ) .s even worse. After a bushfire all the na-FP: 

tive 

MRS P: 
scrub, it 1s as thick as a jungle, you can~ get through. 

You see, they had a bushfire while we were in 
Cabramurra, in fact, there was talk of evacuation. 
have been in ~5, was it? 

That would 

FP : 

MRS P 
FP: 

Adaminaby, 
MRS P 

Down from YarrangobillY camp. 

It got up as far as Three Mile Creek. 
No, it went down to Adaminaby, then. Right down to 

remember? They went to Kiandra to watch it go past. 
Tha t )s right, and there was ta lk at one stage of 

evacuating Cabramurra town s hip, but it did~
1

.f-come to that. 
KH: 

MRS P: 
it? 

FP: 

Yes, I 1ve seen informatio n on that fire in the files. 
Everything grew beautifully. Everything took oft, did"'t 

And the gums there, behind Kiandra, when you go on the 
Snowy Mountains Highway, where the f.l<:'- 1:'1 ... . finishes, all these 
tall trees had been burned down and you would never know now that 
there was a bush fire . 

growth is so thick, it 
, They al l recuperated. But the under-
s nasty, really. In s ummer you can~ 

get through, in winter you ski over it, of course. 
l<H: What a b out if YOU were to compare your early time, 
Your impressions in the early years to your most recent visits . 
You >·ce already suggesting that the regrowt h is thicker now than 
it u sed to b e . 

Yes. FP : 

l<H : That 1s certainly my impressi o n, that all over the high 
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country the regeneration has been prolific. 
just been astonishing. 

You know, itJs 

FP: 
KH: 

Because there have been no bushfires, perhaps. 
People do tend to ascribe it more to the removal of 

grazing and the reduction in fires, less fires. 

regeneration getting away. 

So there 1s more 

FP: 

KH: 
FP: 

Well, you mean that the grassy areas and all that - - -

Grass, 
Well, 

shrubs, herbs, even the trees. 
tell, But I would say that the ero-

sion hasn'+ 
I was mostly 

been - but that 's mainly around Kiandra area where 
have been worse, I reckon, the erosion 

And the trees, well, they area. 
were n'+ 

That ;sin the grassy areas. 
as thick. The undergrowth was,,'+ as thick, because, I 

am sure, it was because of the bushfires, because I know that the 
bushfire went through. Now the undergrowth is terrible. And If'\ 

Talbingo, too, along the slopes there. You need a machete to 
fight your way through. And before then, you had the tall trees 

n--e\'jb~ 
with clearing in between, and they had~medium trees and all that, 
but you didn't have a jungle. But that has nothing to do with 

conservation or lac k of grazing, I would say, because if - of 
course, the greenifS t.'-l;II sr ... Af - it I s the grazing1 the cows all the 

time, new shoots . And that 1 s why you have the jumgle now, be-

cause the green shoots are not even ..... But regardless of what 
caused it all, I preferred it before to now, because before you 
could walk in the bush, and now you have to fight your way 
through. 

KH : 
ago. 
FP: 

So it 1 s - true to say it was more open 20 or 25 years 

More open, amongst the trees, yes. I don't know if 
the tree line has gone back. I don't think it has in these 

d d I: do"' t- know . 
areas . Perhaps it has q .~¥~ ., . •" you would have to put markers 
in, but by observation , I could~+ tell you. 
KH : You see, in the early period, in the 50s, the Snowy 
Mo untains Author i ty did its best to remove grazing. They saw 
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grazing and burning as a big threat to the quality of the catch-
ments. And Hudson was right behind this, and they then offered 
the old Park Trust the money that they would lose from the graz-

ing leases, the SMA paid that amount to the Park Trust. So this ~JaS 
particularly above 4,500 feet, and especially on the Main Range, 
you know, the highest parts. One of the other things that 
people have said to me is, when they go back to try and find some 
of the camps where they lived -
MRS P: They can~ find them. 
KH: It 1 s just totally overgrown, some of the smaller 
camps. 

+-hefV"I FP: Yes, you can findAwhen you look carefully. It ) .s amaz-
ing I had a look - I stumbled on Happy Jack's township. That 
was a few years ago now, 1979, I remember. Before we moved to 
Sydney, I went there - came down along from Kiandra, I went along 
there along the ~,,-.e. +n,.d ., because Happy Jack's went up the 
other side, and I stumbled across - right through where the 
township was, on the way to Boobg,~ And 
there~still remains, like bits of rubber tyre, and you still see 
the basic - they didn'r grade it in after they had finished with 
the township. They cleaned it up, but they left the general 
area, like all the terraces - you see, they had to terrace it to 
put the houses in - so you still can find it. And also, not so 
long ago, at Three Mile camp, too, I still found old packing 
cases, bits of timber and things like that, if you look care-
fully. 

l<H: At Three Mile camp? 
FP: Yes. Still find it. And so it would be with many of 
t he others. 

cause I doi\' r 
I have~+ · bothered with the others, of course, be-

like to dig in the rubbish. 
MRS P: Kiandra was an interesting town years 
to believe so many thousand people lived there, 
90ld rush day s , unrea l. And Bill Pater, c . .k' (?)told 

It Is hard 
it, in the 

us, the snow, you 
know, was a lot heavier years ago, t han what it is now. 
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he say it used to often be 30 feet? 

of the road to the other. 

He would ski f,,cm one side 

FP: 

MRS P 
FP: 
MRS P: 
FP : 

Yes. 
He was an interesting old man, actually. 
But see, I think people exaggerate a lot. 
They possibly do . 

It 1s human nature . That ' s another thing, h uman na-

ture, they exaggerate. 
MRS P: 

you know . 
FP: 

it? 

It was maybe 20 feet, but he said it was a . .... . . . 

Well, there is"'+ much difference, it >s still a lot, 
-t-odn.'s He reckons he was marvel l ous, but byAs~andards he 

woul d have been a raw beginner, real l y, I suspect. 
MRS P: Probably, yes . 
FP: But he thoughthe was marvellous. He might have been 
marvellous for those days, see. 
KH: Oh yes, people ta lk about him as t he ski champion of 
Kiandra, oh yes . 
MRS P: 
KH: 
MRS P : 

He was a big man, about 6 feet . 
Oh, was he? 
Oh yes, a big man. 

KH: I 1 ve got photos of him in this next book, but I didn~ 
ever meet him. 

MRS P : I used to often stop there on the way h o me to 
Cabramurra and have a cup of coffee, tea, with them. She was a 
lovely woman, his wife . She had a pacemaker, one of the first 
actually, I think the_ second they'd _ ever done in Sydney, very 
interesting . 
KH: Yes, they had quite a few children. I think they had 
eight children, or something. 
MRS P: Oh, heaps . 

is in Tumut, the son, 
Cheryl >sin Sydney . 

Shirley O'Halloran . 

There >s two in Tumut, one of them - Bil 1, 

a nd Pat , and Cynthia is here . You see , 

One still lives in Cabramurra, Shirley, 

She still lives in Cabramurra. And then 
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t here ' s two or three others . 
FP: Yes, I remember the first day when we went to 
Cabramurra when I started with the Snowy, the bus stopped there, 
the two girls came out of the 
MRS P: 

FP: 
NRS P : 

Cynthia and Cheryl, they were always smiling. 

They went to school in Cabramurra then, you see. 

Get there about 11 in the morning on the Pioneer bus. 
Always smi l ing, Cynthia and Cheryl. 
KH: I was going to ask you what did you when you weren~ 
working, s leeping or eating, but I think you have already sort of 
told me . 
MRS P : 
FP: 

KH: 

You went hunting . 
Skiing. 

Or fishing, or skiing, bushwalking. 

When you went fishing, there was fishing in streams was 
it, or fishi ng in dams? 
FP: 
KH : 

FP: 
KH : 

FP: 
MRS 

KH: 
MRS 

'' . .,es, +t..~i;-~ Y--:<1s, ~l~h+" Tumut to Tvmo.Jt Po.,.,~/ 'hcv"", 
Po nd,~we wentva lot too. 

+he:-~ 

P : 

P: 

With a boat? 

No, from the shore. 
This was for trout? 

Yes. Oh, we would have caught anything . 
That ' s al l there was. 
What el se did you catch? 
No, he Js joking, he said . ... there was o nly trout 

then . 
KH : No eels? No, . ) 

l. t s too cold, I suppose, for eels . 
FP: Yes, there was a little episode. We h ad a relieving 
engineer - generating s tati'on - Bai· ley, ht h. w a was is name, the 
other Bailey? George Bailey? He wa s ~n Hume Weir One site, he 
Was in Burrinjuck and somewhere else. He was a relieving a lo-
cal guy , for four week s . And he, with s omebody e lse on the boat, 
went up to the head waters of Tumut Pond Dam, I was told, and 
they had a gold min~area there, Nine Mile Diggings, I think it 
was ca lled . And they brought back some gear they had used a long C\5° 
time~for the production of gold, or winning of gold. I think mer-
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cury, or whatever. There were some chemicals and some f~q~jh~ or 

whatever. they brought it back - - -
KH: Nine Mile Diggings? 

FP: I think - the headwaters of the Tumut Pond. which are 
about the Nine Mile Diggings. I would say. 

KH I think after gold came out of the stamper batteries, 
1-o po.s:!, 

it usedAover a copper plate, something made of copper that was 

coated with mercury, And I think the copper and the mercury com-

bined would catch the particles of gold. I think eve{y so often 

they scraped all that off, and separated the mercury from the 
<)eT 

gold. Now, they may have wanted to~those copper plates. 
FP: Well. they got something there. I was told. But I did~~ 

kt\ow 
see them, and I don'tnthe of it. but I ' .m pretty sure 

they would have been there, because where there~ fire, theres 
smoke, see. And that guy Bailey and a couple of others went 

up there. So somebody must have known. I had - by then I didn1
~ 

know fht'..rt w~,-:.2 9vld ,.,,-;,es Vf -1-ii,!le - that was at the early stage. 

Maybe 1962 or so. And so I don 't know what they got. 
MRS P: 
have been. 
KH: 

FP: 

The.rt 's r;.1--,·11 gold around there, I 'm sure there would 

Did anyone go gold panning? 
Yes, I heard of a few. Actually, what I heard was 

when they built Tumut One power station they had - they called it 
a . $0·0.4. .. batching plant where they found a suitable rock and 
they ground it into the right size. had it going through sieves, 
so they had a constant gauge of material, and shaking sieves and 

all that, a French- c ompany, I believe. And they had a little 
gold extraction unit amongst it. All the gravel they took out 

there. 
KH : 

FP: 

And they split the reward amongst the crew 

Sorry, where was this? on New Chum Hill? 
No, it wa s when they built Tumut One power station, 

right? And they naturally tried to get the materials loca lly. 
they don'+ want to cart it for mile s and miles. So they had the 
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batching plant, it is called, always, I think they had it up 
below Cabramurra. 
name exactly. 

I know exactly where, but I don't know the 

KH: On Eight Mile Creek? 
FP: No. it was virtually on the present road between 
Cabramurra and Tumut Two power station. Not far below group con-

once, but apparently they trol centre. And I think it had a name 

got all their gravel from there to build Tumut One and Tumut Two, 
but first they built Tumut One, of course. And when the French 
crew operated it, they had that gold extraction plant there - all 
the gravel -
KH: So the gravel was crushed, went through a crusher. 
FP: Yes. the rocks got crushed, and all that. And somehow 
they got the gold out, I don't know how, because I ) m rather ig-
norant in this respect. 
KH : 
FP: 
MRS P : 
FP: 
KH: 
FP: 

Did they get much? 

I believe it was quite a paying proposition. 
Probably more than they let on. 
Yes, oh yes. 

Thousands of dollars worth? 

Oh, I would say more than that, 
proceedings amongst the crew. And I know, 

because they split the 
I think f<:-yi, ~f.~~~~1/. 

but he i s a bit of a liar. He said he went washing with the pan s 
down the Tumut River and he got a matchbox full now and then. 

I heard of a few people who went panning, gold-panning in the 
Tumut River. 
KH: And did anyone go further and actually put a plant in 
on any of the rivers . like, on the Eucumbene, near Kiandra, like 
a Plant that would suck all the new silt and so on out of the 

cracks in the river bed and put it through a separation plant? 
Dia a nyone get up to anything like that ? 
FP: Not t o my knowledge, no . 
MRS: That was another story, with Paul Schr·CLder, that day 
Wh e n the Snowy vehicle went off the road , was,/t i t . On his way 
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;:, 
to work, he was - were you driving, or ;r.of-."."~.-; ·,· 
FP: I wasn't in the car . 
MRS P: Well, he was a neighbour of ours, Paul SchrD--der, and 
he was going to work one day . And you know when the car is all 

snowed over, they just make a hole - clear a hole and keep driv-
ing. Then a ll of a sudden, he heard bump, and he said to the 
driver, "Are we here?" "' ,, They were 20 feet off the side of the 

it did. road, landed on~fours, 
KH: There were quite a few people killed during the con-
struction of the Scheme . 
FP: Yes. 
KH: Did you know anyone who was killed? 
FP : No . Well, there were quite a few, according to that 
memorial in Jindabyne, what, 70 odd or whatever. 
KH: On that there is 120. 
FP : 120? 
KH : Yes, on that memorial , 
MRS P : book that I 've got there - - -
KH : Yes . 
FP : But anyway, I never knew that there were any killed, 
real ly, I heard stories of somebody saw three of them in one go, 
go down the shaft past him, screaming " Geronimo! '' You sort of hear 
these stories, and say , " Oh yes , just another story, 11 

KH : 

down 
FP : 

That really happened, I think. 

At Tumu.t One at lftQ.<f .~ '?' J yes . 

Some scaffolding went 

A few in the dams, they 
are still there, r believe , They just kept on going, t h e con-
crete , they fell in, and they kept on pouring on top of them. 

They ~re s till there . Quite a few cases, 1 think , 
KH: Are there, YOU think? 
FP: Oh yes. I believe that 
KH: Who fell into - accidentally, or - - -

du.ring concrete pouring, They poured concrete Yes, 
continuously. It was a continuous process. They had special 
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scaffolding developed, In those days, they were always after 
records, not just standing, pouring too. They are probably in 
the books. And they had that moving framework - that moves up. 
As the concrete hardens below, 

i i-
they move the framework up. They 

put~ in - what they call it now, the sections, they don't pull the 
whole bits up then - t hey just pull sections now. I can. t 
remember - it has a name. 
blocks, here and there and 

So they pull a part up here - a block, 
so forth. They pour day and night, 

they just move the concrete. They have the big cable hanging 
there with the machine pouring in t he concrete, a nd it just moves 
along there, and they could~+ stop, really, So when somebody 
falls in, they just pour it on top of him . 
MRS P: What were all those cyl inders used for, at Cabramurra? 
FP: Testing. They took samples of each new lot. You see , 

IYli'l(~d 
they r:r1i,)hlhrwe,,, I don't know, 5,000 metres of cement, right? 
And they mix it, I don 't know, 6 to 1, or 4 to 1, or something. ~h~f s 
sand and gravel to cement ratio. And then they take samples . 
They pour it in those forms and then they crush it, to give the 

s t rengths, crushing strengths. And~ao deliberate mixture varia-
tions a n d test that for a particular purpose. Then all the 
cylinders , so many of them are left over, and then the local 

i113 
employees take them for the gardeD,\ edges and all this. And 
People wondered what they were for , until they blew u p whl!n they 

had them on t h e b a rbecue . The stone s expanded, you know . 
KH: Yes, I notice there ~s a place out at Mitchell, out 
here, wherever it is, that does tha t. They have big truckloads 
of these things come, and they do the tests on them . 
And you didf\'t have a pub at Cabramurra, did you ? 
MRS P: A wet canteen. 

FP : No, a we t canteen. There was a wet staff canteen dnd 
<:jC t-

the wet wages canteen, And you cou.ldAwet a n ywhere! 
MRS P: And they were well patronised . 
FP : No, 
better person , 

the s taff canteen , I t h ink, 
#.ere. 

YOU could drink a nytime . 
I\ 

if you were staff , a 

But if you were wages, 
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you were frowned upon. And I suppose you could have been asked 
to remove your body from the premises. I saw a few of them. 
wasl"'\1+-
MRS P: 

a pl1b person, I wasf'\'+ there often. 
Frank was never a pub crawler. 

I 

FP: When I was single, of course, I was there more often, 
of course. I had nowhere to go. I mean, before the family came, 
before I had the house. And the wages people were invited some-
times to the staff on special occasions, and during special 

. . Cl,j • privi~ed sessions . 
KH; You told me this on the phone, about how there were the 

undesirables , as it were, the ones that were uncouth, that you 

FP: 
MRS P: 
FP: 

sit next to at the dining table. 
Yes. 
Especially the Irish. 

Yes, there were strict separation, wages CC'~IY\ p / 
staff camp. And they had their own mess and canteen, too, at-
tached. And of course, if you were a jovial sort of person you 
went occasionally to the wages facilities. 
MRS P: For the fun of it . 
FP: "Oh, he ) . s a nice bloke, he even eats with us." 
MRS P: I can remember not long after we moved to Cabramurra, a 
woman invited me down to meet other women. And one of the first wos 
things Ill.asked, was Frank wages or staff? And I said, " I don't 
know ." "What day does he get paid on?" I said, "Thursday ," 

"Oh, that 's all r ight." And I came home and I said to Frank, do 
you remember that? "What' s wages and staff?" You know, I did1i1t 
know the difference. But he was paid Thursday, so I was all 
right. That was staff. I'll never forget that. And do YOU know 
who asked me ? g; 11'j : · · That figures. 
FP: Yes, it J .s the \J~~f-~~-~'l":'~.Qlc( <'~bc\3$ , 

KH: So there was a stigma attached to those who were the 
worker s . I mea n, the people who got dirty and fi lthy were a bit 
lower, looked down upon. 
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MRS P: A friend of mine, her husband drove the rubbish truck, 
and I have had people say, "I don't know how you can be friendly 
with her." They own two hotels now. One at Coonabar~abran and 
one at the Blue Mountains. 
KH! It would be a funny twist if those people went to stay 
at their hotel, 
MRS P: Oh, it ) 

s strange, isn't it? 
FP: You know who I met at K-Mart last week , 
back the barrels? 

other short fellow? 
The guy from Talbingo, 

when I gave 
not D~rby, what >s the 

I would n'+ have recognised, but he recog-
nised me, an operator , 
somewhere. 

They have a house down in Kambah, or 

KH: Did You have any parties? 
MRS P: Oh, they had plenty of wild parties up there. 
FP: 

But see, 
Yes. I don't remember going to any. B,u.r.1!"-.e.:~.P,':=',bf<.bl'j we.rq_,,...,'+ 

I H,.. 0-+ n-, cl, Y1:j • 
I didAt feel like going anywhere. I came home, maybe 

at 7 at night, you were dog tired. Then you were on standby, you 
tried to grab as much sleep as you can , if you were lucky, 

they( So much work, MRS P: 

KH: 
FP : 

More or less 7 till 7, weren'~ 
Were there any films shown? 
Yes , they had films, They had housie, didn't they? 

You went to housie regularly, 
MRS P: 
had 
KH: 

MRS P: 

Badminton was very big on the Snowy. frcb~h0 
bridge, and all sorts of things like that. 

they 

Was t here much gambling, espec ially amongst single men? 
I would s ay probably, Actually the fellow who r a n the 

shop ran an SP unofficially, 
KH: 
MRS P: 
FP : 

This is on the horses? 
Yes . 

Something comes to my mind , a fellow who brought up a 
womba t u p there, in a sock , You see there was also, in 1964, 
sprin g 1964, the snow started melting and receding just from the 
bitumen first, because where the grader h ad pushed it a little 
b. OLlt" 
it fur ther back, so the green s hoot s come a nd the snow bank was 

I, 
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pretty high, a metre, 

force to eat there. 
half a metre. And the wombats came in in 

And many of them could~+- get back up the 
snow bank, they were fumbling along the road, and got hit by 
cars, three or four every day. 
mother laying on its back dead, 

And once we found one there. a 
with a young one with the claws 

Le,,,,c(Rave/ +l>fWI 
going like this. And the fellow I was with1 Z:.~i:ti.G\ 11 he pulled"it 

out. He was sort of a nature lover too . Well everybody there, 

if you would~~ike nature you would not work there. You would 
prefer Sydney. And the people, they like country and all that. 
And so, I don't know how old it was, but it took years to grow 
up. And he brought it to work in an old sock, and hung it on a 

it-
coat hanger there. It was there all day, and he fedAwith Q. bo++-1~. 
MRS P: Carnation milk, 
FP: And fo r years and years. It must have been fi ve year s , 
And it became a grey one - -
MRS P: 
FP: 

And it became a nuisance, 
And then it s tarted chewing up 

Cl• 
he was~wages guy, 

living in the wages camp, so he gave it to another guy at the 
+he.r-e. . 

houseA He had it there and it chewed up the lino, so he gave it 
back. And finally they set it free, and I think it went back 
home . 
MRS P: Yes, it came back, It did•,'+ .• like the life in the 

did,H it? 
. Anj wo.-,•°'<>..r. 

WJ.ld. I'- It lived like a king, 
FP : I thought I saw it o nce, but there were probably 
several grey ones like that, in the snow, bowling along. 
MRS P : Well, it took · year s to grow. I can remember you 
brought it home one weekend to show the children, in its sock. 
It was gorgeous. 
KH: That winter must have killed a lot of wombats, I wo uld 
h ave thought. 
FP: Oh yes, three or four every day, just in the short 
stretch there. 
KH: No, I mean they would have even died through natural 
causes because of the sever ity of the snow cover. 
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FP: When it started snowing, I remember, 
.[ f, c,.. CAIi a.rod I V'e..-,-t 1'--1--i'!,e. 

Volkswagen 0/\c.j.., .••• '?-~,. amongst the snow flakes, 
I hit one with the 

I could see that 
wombat, and I braked as hard as I could, but I hit it. I 
reversed back and they were all gone. 

o,-.,e., 
young~ I thought it was. 

There was a mother with a 

MRS P: You must have only dazed it if it moved. 
F'P : I could,,'+ see them anywhere. And one - several times 
we tried to help the wombats on the snowbank, but they went for 
you, YOU could(\'+ . touch them, they were s~v~Je. 
KH! They growl, I notice , They make a n o ise. I tried 

MRS P: You would think they~ - be quiet. 
KH: I heard that there were prostitutes who used to come to 
some of the camps? Was that still going on when you were there? 
MRS P : At Cabramurra, Oh yes. 
KH: Was there much of that? 
FP: Every wages payday they were there. 
KH: I think someone actually came - someone used to -
MRS P: Mrs Stewart could tell you, WOl"nQn 

the who owned the shop. 
Because I can remember - You would see the women - all the deal-
ings went on in the shop, She could tell you. 
KH: 

MRS P: 
In a shop? 
Yes, well, !.,'-e.(. 

I didAthem sitting - wou ldo~ 
a m sure they were prostitutes . 
FP: Some of them. Others they had a pimp too, 
they got lined up before. They had sort of bookings. 
MRS 

YOU, 

You see , 

P: I can remember, in )61, you 1d hate going into 
the s hop,rea lly, because there~ be all these men. When all 
the men were still there. matter if you had a couple 
of chi ldren in tow, YOU would still hate going into the shop. 

or l ooking for 
KH : You felt that they were e yeing you off, 
a wife, or a woman, or -
MRS P : 
l<H: 

Not a wife, I ; m sure . 
Looking for an easy time. 
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MRS P: Yes. 
KH: But you had to go, I suppose , there was only one shop. 

MRS P: That ~s al l, and you~ _ pay through the nose. We 

used to go to Cooma usually once a fortnight. I remember once I 

and I didn 1 f- get 00 'jOLJ '> drove down, ,,remember- I took Pat Hall with me, 

home till 7 at night. There'd been a violent snowstorm. You 

were giving me till 7 to get home, weren1r you, before you did 
90 

anything . Every fortnight I would~68 miles to shop. 

KH: One lot of prostitutes, I believe, came with their own 

caravan. 
FP: Yes. I don't know if it was the same lot, but there 

was one in Talbingo, remember? 

MRS P: Oh, yes. And one of the Lancaster boys got charged. 

FP: That) .s right, He held them up and robbed them. 

MRS P : That7 s right. He held up the caravan and robbed the 

prostitutes, that ' .s right. 
KH: I see . That )s an interesting twist. Vice on vice . 

MRS P: That 7 s right. In fact, when we moved to Talbingo, 

this fellow was in gaol, was,"''t it for that offence? ke got 

caught, 
FP: I don't know. 

they were all no-hopers. 
t roub le. 

There was a family there, four boys, 

They were always in trouble, terrible 

MRS P: 
remember ? 
FP : 

MRS P: 
KH: 

FP : 

One stole a Snowy c ar and wrote it off. 

Yes, and that one robbed prostitutes. 

No,~ no, that was a different one . 

Robbed the prostitutes. 
Between Tumut and Talbingo somewhere. 

MRS P: Oh , some funny things happened. 
i~. 

Do YOU 

FP: I don't know more details about~ But of course next 
time everybody is l aughing about it. 

MRS P: But the prostitutes, I im sure , would have ma de their 

fortune in Cabramurra in the early days. 
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FP: Well, we had the hawker coming around too. He come 
usually the fortnight when payday was. 
few things off him. 

Quite good, I bought a 

KH: He had a truck, a little truck, or what? 
FP: No, a Kombi, I think he had. He put up sort of a big 
tent, and he had his wares hanging everywhere. 

And then a fellow would come once a month with ladies' MRS P: 
clothes, really good quality. Do you remember that fellow? I 
think his name was Samosi, or something like that. Really good 
quality. He'~ - come once a month, selling. And hJd 
drop - you know, yould look. -c-nd __ yould say, "Oh, I like 
those four t hings," "Take them." "I'll come back in an hour or 
two," They did well, and I) m sure other hawkers - when we went 
there you had bread delivered to the door. But, of course two or 
three years later that stopped. They used to come from 
Adaminaby. You always had to go - you never had mail deliveries 
- you always had to go to the post office for your mail, and so 
on. And it was a bit awkward, in a sense. We were down what, 
about 90 stairs we had to walk, to get to the shop, because you 

FP: 
MRS P: 
difficult, 

always drive. 

Each terrace had a lot of stairs . 

So you>ci go down, maybe more. And in winter it was 
l j .. ,s t 

because you wouldn~ walk upstairs, you 
had to fight your way up the snow. 
KH : 
FP: 

MRS P: 
KH: 
MRS P: 
make a 

You wouldf''+-
No. 

No. 
You didnl+ 

ski down? 

ski? 

My fashion tennis was my thing. No, I would never 
<3t> ovr o. bi+ . 

s kie r, although I didA .. But the family, of course, soon 

left me for dead . I think Lisa started a t - Frank had to make 
Skis, you couldr/f buy skis in those days, small enough for 
Children . He made s kis for the c hildren in the early 60 s . 
FP : Funny,we sold them, they sold them to somebody else . 
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And somebody else gave - they were passed on everywhere. 

MRS P: 
FP: 

They were going for years - metal, 
Aluminium skis they were. 

MRS P: The children started skiing very young, didn't they? 

Lisa would have only been two, and Carl, four. 

FP: 
KH: 

FP: 
KH: 

FP: 
KH: 

more. 

Yes, about that. 
What about fights? On the job or in the camps? 

Yes, there were always fights. 
What were they over? 

Shootouts. 
Shootouts? Oh, I haven'+- heard of those. Tell me 

FP: There was one in Talbingo, a shootout, between the 
+i-.e.. 

Serbs andACroats. I think it was 17 one side and 20 on the other 
side. I don't know which side - they were shooting with firearms 

w~re.. 
against each other . And I think thereA6 or 7 injured. 
MRS P: What year, do you remember? 
FP : Well, minor injuries. You know, maybe sort of puncture 

MRS P: No. What year? 
FP: I ) m not sure, but it must have been after - early 
times, 1970 or thereabouts? 
KH: 1970. at Talbingo? 
FP: Yes. Because it was like a small-scale war, I believe, 
people hiding behind various obstacles. And of course, you heard 
about the episodes in Cooma between the Croatians, ripping 

the f lag down off~the poles and all that, the Yugoslav flag? 
KH : No. 

FP: Many times. They had the flags of nations there. 
KH: Yes, that'> .s right. 
FP : And the Croatians don't like the Yugos lav flags . You 
see, they want their own . So they modified the flaQpoles many 

-the, v 
times . First, of course, they had,, cords at the bottom, so they 

just took it down . And then they shortened the c ords and t hey 
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had various gimmicks. But I think they even cut one down once, 
whole pole or something, 
month. 

And that was going on virtually every 

MRS P: That was in the early 60s. Then it seemed to improve, 
didn't it? I don't think there ;s been trouble in years. 
FP! Yes. Although, then I r~membe, I remember dis-

a 

tinctly I read in the Sydney Morning Herald, "T-Bone Steaks stop 
Snow.; Scheme, "you know, a typical journalist's headline. That is 
exactly the wording of it - "T-bone Steaks stop Snowy Scheme," it 
said. 
about? 

But then, of course, you start reading, what this 

That was in the Thiess mess, it was called, or wages mess 
in Talbingo, a guy had a disagreement with the cook, when he was 
served. I can't remember now the exact detail, but he threw the 
t-bone steak back at the cook, and say.£, " Cop this ." or "Eat it 

yourself," or something. And they all walked out after that. 
~.,J Some minor incident. And they went on strike for aAdays, 

MRS P: 
FP: 

KH: 

So the t-bone steak stopped the Snowy Scheme. 
Usually a minor thing like this. 

I suppose after a while the Snowy would have stopped 
employing either the Yugoslavs or the Croats , if one of them wasn't-

on the Scheme 
MRS I don't think it stopped them. Maybe they tried to 
separate them. 
FP: But see , it )snot the Snowy - these people were with 
the contractors, the major contractors . 
MRS P: Wet/ S"e K · ' · • • •· -~ ~-, aiser - Per,ni , and so on and so on. 
FP: And most of these guys were considered wages, as far a s 
the Snowy was concerned, th A th ·t ' t ff e u ori Y s s a , you know. Only 
there the bosses were considered staff and allowed in the staff 

h((d quarters. They even.~s taff quarters with the Snowy . And they had 
a so-cal l ed major contract inspectors, also employed by the SMA. 
They checked up o n the concreting a nd all that. They were \1'<21"'~ c._losQJ_j 

like Thiess, a nd Kaiser with the major contractor s , 
P€rini, there were all those big American contractors. And so 
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hC\.d 
theyAno real jurisdiction, I suppose, on whom the major contrac-
tors employed. They had to take whomever they could get. I 

mean, no self-respecting guy wanted to go to the Snowy and sort 
of, be up to his eye-balls in mud, sortof So they had only the 
rough and tough types. And they have found since that in the 

construction sites, the labour is mostly provided by Irishmen, 
usually the powder monkeys, they like to blow up things, always 

the Irishmen. Yugoslavs, which comprise Serbs, 
that. If they say Croatians, you know they are 

Croatians and all 
Yugoslavs. They 

don't like to say Yugoslav, they are a sort of different race, 
they think they are. And these are the major ones, the Irishmen 
and Yugoslavs, do the dirty work. But they made enough, I sup-
pose. So there you are, "T-Bone Steaks Stop the Snowy "· ban you 
remember that? 
MRS P: Yes. 
KH: What about fights between different groups of Germans? 
Anything there? 
FP: 

KH: 
Well, 

Well, 

Of different political persuasion? 
I never heard of it. 

at I s land Bend, ~think, I heo~d, in the earlier 
period, in the 50s, I think there was some animosity there. 
MRS P: There was a very good article on Cabramurra in what 
they call the Good Weekend. Do you remember it used to be in the 

Canberra Times on a Sunday, and they stopped it about a year ago. 
And I regret not keeping it. There was an excellent article, 
about 5 pages on Cabramurra. Do you remember about all the 

ipfr;!}<.'~.S,.., Frank, you remember it. And in those days when we were 

there, it was surprising the few marriages that stayed together. 
You would r.'+ believe that this one would go off with that one's 
wife, and husba nd, and so it went on. We had a lot, 

FP: Yes, there was the fellow I worked with - he liked to 
he did 1'\'t do much work, but he wa s the best journalist in the 
Snow~ f f"'eckor.. Al ways, "Let' s have a cup of tea." And then 
" Guess what I saw yesterday. Joe's wife went behind our house 
and wen t down to number 16, and then shortly after h e came out 
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the front door, 1' 

trick. 
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All these stories, crikey, he didn't miss a 

MRS P: And when Frank went to Austria in 1969, his father was 
ill, and that was just about when the Jindabyne pumping station 
was being commissioned. 
FP: Officially opened. 
MRS P: Yes. And he could"''+: go and he'd worked so mu.ch on 
it, and he'd 

low, mind YOU, 
arranged for a fellow he worked with, an old fel-
who would have been 50-odd then, to take me. And 

t he minute he got back, this somebody went up and said, "Did you 
know that Wally took your wife ? " . And he said, "No, I didn't. 11 

Oh, I could have killed him. They loved gossip. 

FP: But what about the funny thing when the travel agent 
called at the front door. 
MRS P: I could have killed him too. He had a terrible 
sense of humour, very dry. 

MRS P: Frank went to Austria, and he sent me a telegram, 
that he was arriving back two days earlier. And I just 
dropped everything in Cooma and drove to the airport to pick him 
up. Then the next day the travel agent arrived at the door, and 
Frank a nswered it, and he said, "Would you tell Mrs Pirchmoser 
that her husband will be arriving tomorro w at ·9 am," or whatever, 
and he said, "Yes, I"ll tell her." And here he was, he'd been 
home for 24 hours. Goodness knows what that fellow thought. 
FP: 

MRS P: 
agent? 

there. 

I was in a dressing gown, 

That was a bad blue, 
wasn't I? 
wasn't it, for the travel 

Saying he was arri vi ng the next day and he was already 

KH : +,,.,e. The intri gue i n a small community. At the sameAit was 
sort of a frontier town, was~~ it? All the S MA camps,by and 
large, were kind of frontier places, were.-,'+ 
FP: Well, Cabramurra was civilised. 

' some of these camps, you know. 

MRS P~ All amenities were t here. 

they? 

con sidered with 
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FP: I went to some of these camps on my travels, either on 
the job or just dv~in3 the weekend, bushwalking or so, like 
Twins camp Geehi, that ;s right, that was still there. I 

thought I had struck paradise when I got into Geehi that time. 
The camp was completely empty, everything was closed, the whole 

township still there, and the hot water was still on in the bar-
racks. 

MRS P: That was when I had to drive and pick you up. 
of 

FP: Yes, well, I sortAover-estimated how long it would 
take. 
KH: Where did you walk? 
FP: From Round Mountain - I wanted to walk •fro"' Round Moutain 
to Guthega power station. And I sort of changed my mind a bit. 
And I didn1t _ go down the Schl:ink'.s Pass, I went over the other 
side to Twins Camp, that ;son the - let me see southern, more 
southerly, I think. It 's like - the track forks south. 
see, that side you come to Guthega; that side you come 
Geehi side, on the other side of the mountain range. 
KH: Yes, along the Grey Mare Range? 

You 

the 

FP: Yes, along the Grey Mare, along the fire trail there, 
down Prince - -
KH: Yes. 
FP: So I hit Geehi. Then from Geehi I hitchiked - no, that 
was Twins Camp Thiess Brothers were there. they were still 
there. They were still building Geehi then. I hitchiked from 
Twins Camp to Geehi, which is about 6 kilometres or something . 

Geehi was a Snowy ~ownship, Twins Camp was a Thiess camp . And 
you see, there · 1 s a distinct difference between . · SMA and the 
contractors. If you speak to somebody who has been with a con-
tractor, he calls Snowy generally. It means he was in the Snowy 
Mountains, but he was~+ . necessarily employed by the Snowy Moun-
tains Authority . He might have been with Thiess or any of those 
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major contractors. And that :s where the confusion arises. 
KH: 

the Snowy, 

later on. 
FP! 
MRS P: 

FP: 
MRS P: 

FP: 
at that 

Yes. I ) m with YOU, And some people first worked in 
worked for contracts, and then went on to the SMA 

Yes. 

Well, Frank originally, weren't you SMC originally? 
No, SMA. 

But YOU went to SMC. 

But there 1 s hardly any distinction between SMC and SMA 
it'sjust a name, You do the same work virtually, It>s 

just on paper. 

KH: Do you think there was any discrimination between 
nationalities as to who should do a particular job? I mean, were 
certain nationalities chosen for one thing and others for some-
thing else? 
MRS P: Didn't seem to be. 
KH: It was more by individual choice. I mean, the Irish 
just happened to like blowing things up and so on. And the Ger-
mans. it seems to me, or people with German backgrounds, seemed 
to be more in technical positions. 
FP: Yes, exactly, yes. 
MRS P: And you find the Yugoslavs often were labourers, and so 
it goes on. 
or three 

The Swiss were technical, weren't they? We knew two 

FP: Ninety percent of electricians were always German. 
MRS P: Or Dutch. 
FP: I mean that )s the other ten per cent were others. But 
ninety per cent were German. you could say, And the mechanical 
staff, too. Well, you can say , as an average, about 70, 80 per 
cent of all the technical staff in wages were German, or German 
origin, Swiss, you know. or the related, Danish and so forth, 
Au s tr.........,ian. Czech, not many Czechs. 
l<H: 

drilling? 
And a lot of Italians were in the tunnels, it seems, 
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FP: 
KH: 
FP: 
yes. 
MRS 

FP: 

p: 

Yes . 
And concreting. 
They like, Italians, the r ocks and stones and all that, 

And the Czechs were in the hydr ology - - -

That 's right, yes . 
.... ..... .. . . . . ... (all talking at once!) 
KH: . .. . . • ~.C.6 • • -:J.o...-,,,.-to... .• is a Czech, I think. 

FP : Maybe they prefer that . 

MRS P: They were all Czech - a lot of them . 
FP: So, I don't know why, but I reckon it might be their 

temperaments or it suits them , you see. 
KH: They almost had a national temperament thaistended them 

MRS P: To have a certain type of job . 
KH: It l s very interesting . 
MRS P: It is, when you think about it, isn't it? 
KH: What about the English? I mean, there some Pommies on 
the Scheme. 

FP: Union representatives . 
MRS P : Yes . I only knew one, and that was Dave . . . . . . . 
or • .. . . . ... . he was an operator . 
FP: Yes, they both were useless , though, weren't they? So 
maybe that \s why there were n1

~ many. They both were fai l ures, 
the poor devils . 

less . 

They c an'.l: help it, some of them are just use-

MRS P: I don ' t think I ever knew anyone el se Eng l ish, but 
ffi•'ni ,.-~5,) 

those two~ didjou? 
FP: I knew another one , Fred Taylor, wasn't it? At Cooma. 
He was English . 
KH: But at the head level there wert.- I mean, the boss was 
a New Zealander . 
MRS P : Hudson was a New Zealander . 
KH : And some of the other engineers were. 
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MRS P: Yes , Barry Chatfield would have been o n e of the few 
Australians, wouldn ' t he? 
FP : C\. 

No. there were quitehfew . 
Mrs P: Well , ha l f and half, 
KH: It seems at the administration level there were a lot 
of English-speaking people . 
fP: Well, they would have to . You have to . You can1t. af-
ford foreigners with an accent in administration . And t h e same_ 

rm ti""'"'• when we were in Sydney with an Italian company, 99 per cent.,._ but 
the administration, the office, t h e telephone, the switchgirl, 
and all these, they were all Australian . 
in proper English in business. They can't 

They have to converse 

afford to h ave some-
body that doesn't get the meaning of things, even though they 
speak perfectly, like some people , they have a perfect command of 
English, but they don~ understand it, it 's strange. They 
mouth it like a parrot, but they do"' t know what it means. And 

KH: 

cause, 

have that. 

But you feel that the SMA really looked after you. 
see, there was a lady ca l led Mona Ravenscroft, who 

wrote a book called 'Men of the Snow Mountains' back in the 

s ixties, and she says in there that the SMA was a hidebound, 
rigid, repressive and authoritarian set-up. Apparent l y the 
employees had no right of appeal, and had to live according to 
wha t head office decided for them. 

Be-

MRS p : I would say that was wrong, wouldn!<: YOU , inaccurate. 
FP: To some extent , it 1 s right. But these people have no 
idea of authority , 
KH : She was a writer - - -
MRS P: Did s he live ) - - -
l<H : Well, I don ' t know exact l y. 
MRS P: I h ave never heard of her . 
l<H: Yes, she wrote this book. 
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MRS P: We've. got quite a few of them. We'v~ got - -

FP: Well, these are not representative of the Snowy, they 
were just men of the Snowy, or something like that, stockmen and 

Well, one of your books. all this. 
MRS P: Well, I will just give you an example of the Authority, 

for one instance. We were moving from Cooma to Talbingo. We 

were fortunate, every time we moved they'4 paint out the 

house. And you could choose from - maybe f;v~ colours. It didn1c 
suit me, so I went over there and saw Tom Judge, you remem-

ber, and I said, "Now, look, if I buy the paint, what I want in 
iM-.::J did. 

my kitchen, will you put it on?" Yes>(\. So rules were meant to 

be bent, aren 't they, or broken, or whatever. 
FP: But they did ,-,,'t do that all the time either. 

MRS P: Another funny case - maybe I should not say. Do YOU 

remember I had very rough concrete tubs at Cooma? Very rough, 

you know , and they~ snag the clothes. And I knew they wouldn't 

replace them until the3were ...... .. . 
(end of tape) 
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KH: Oh, don't YOU? All right. 

MRS P Oh, Joe Blow - I can't remember his name, which i s 
unusual for me, I really can~ - and I said, "My tubs are 
broken. " He said, "What happened?" I said, "What do you think? 
I jumped in them. " And I had. I just thought, I'll keep going 
and going and going. He thought that was a huge joke. What was 
his name? Hungarian fellow. 
KH: Did the SMA take kindly, if you made suggestionsas to 
how things could be improved or better work practices? 
FP: Well, I believe they did. I never put . the. ideaS ,"n. 

0.. 
But they hadAsuggestion scheme, whereby people got bonuses, money 
out of them. One that comes to my mind now, is at one stage, 
with station waggons , the safety net between the person area 

I 
benc h seat, and the luggage compartment. And they started fit-
ting up those nets similar to what Vclv::,S have now. And 
somebody, I believe, got $500 - it must have been for that. And 
suggestions like this. As I say, I never had any. So obviously 
they took advice - yes, that was it . There are always people who 

sort of, getnlong with management, somehow. 
hcwe. 

In every 
company, always~sour grapes or an axe to grind for some reason, 

b b ~H may e ecause for some reason just don'tA o n and maybe a person 
like that didn'c get on and reported his shortcomings . It Js 

But I 1..m sure that the majority of people are agreeing possible. 

with what I say . 
MRS P : F'or i· nstance, h wen we were at Cabramurra, you 
could have been transferred to Khancoban, you did~'t want it. 

forced to go . You could have been, couldn't 
YOU? 
FP: Yes , that is right, 
MRS P : y IL ou weren~ forced to go, They could have said, 
" We 1 l , You a,~e go i n g , and that ' s it . " 
KH : 

MRS P : 
remember? 

Yes, that ~s right. 
u 

Frank Said, t doi~t want to go1 so they sent Max .. • •, YOU 
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FP: Yes. Well, I could have stayed there at Cabramurra 

during the day, but I was there about 6, 6 and a half years, and 

I thought, oh well, I want to move somewhere else. 

KH: 
FP: 
MRS P: 
KH: 

FP: 
MRS P: 

You lived at Talbingo then. 

No, Cooma. 
Talbingo was last. 
And how long did you spend in Talbingo? 
January 171 until ~4, April >74, 

He cou 1 d ho-ve. s+d I been there if he wanted to. But he 

requested to finish. 
FP : You see, a nother thing which knocks that statement on 
the head, is really I had about three years'notice of retrench-
ment . 
KH: That's pretty good. 
FP: I was still actual lY - it 1.s a disadvantage, because it's 

too early to find another job. You cannot say, "Please, if I 
am successful in this job, could you keep it for about three 
years for me?" Things like that. It has disadvantages and ad-
vantages , in some re s pects. Some people left straightaway, of 
course, and I hung on. 

KH : 774 was practically the end, wasn't it? 
FP: I still remember in Coo~~ , I was, when I got the 
letter, and then I finished off in Talbingo. 
sion, I think, actually. 

I had an exten-

MRS P : And then they sti ll wanted you to stay on, I remember, 
but YOU declined . 
KH: I want to ask you a few more general sort of questions. 

You think that it was a good idea to direct the waters of the 

Snowy through t he mountains and out west for irrigation? 
FP : 
waste . 

Well, of course. Or it runs into the ocean and goes to 
And they need water inland. It ,s much cheaper than 

+o~v.i.ng icebergs from Antarctica, isn't it? As somebody suggested. 
They say it has become feasible now, with present technology, to 

fu~ icebergs to cities like Adelaide, where they have acute water 
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shortage there apparently. 

No, it ·~s just that - they ; now hayt, problems with 
irrigation too, with the salt, salt rising to the surface, and 
areas becoming impossible for farming for crops now. So these 
are things that you don't necessarily discover whilst the Scheme 
is being built. 

FP: That 1s right, yes . Yes, 
crops that are resistant to salt, 

but now they are finding 
too. 

KH: The crops? 

FP: Yes. They are doing quite well, now. Wheat and all 
kind of things, thai- are salt resistant. 
KH: Is that right? 
FP: Yes. we saw it on'countrywide~ I think. And I see Is-
rael has that problem too. They have been doing quite well. 
KH: But they have more a form of drip irrigation, I think . 
It >s when you irrigate and you raise the whole water level, 
ground water, I think, that >s when you have the worst problem'l 
FP: Probably yes. They waste a lot, too, that way. They 
could probably, if they would not waste so much - see t he 
Australian farmer is an uneducated, ignorant bloke as a whole. 

p..lr 
want to~any money back . He . .liv'I-S .. off the lan~ does n '~ If 

they would waste less water, they could use more for the rest, 
develop new canals, or so . They haven't built a single canal 
here, yet . They are a 11 over Europe, canals, . for the s ame pur-
pose, communication and water supply, 

and utilise the water to better effect. 
They could do much more 

But they just do it the 
easy way , Let it flood everywhere and then when they think they 
have had enough, turn it off aga in. 
KH: But you certainly feel that the Snowy Scheme was a 
good thing even though, I mean, on one hand it was quite an im-
Pact on the environment, in that valleys were flooded; there were 
roads we nt in; tracks , power lines especially, they cut down a 
lot of trees; some of the r i vers are almost dead, at least for a 
Short length, because there Js no more water flowing down them . 
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You would feel that well, you feel that that was worth it in 

terms of the benefits elsewhere? 
FP: Yes, there wouldn'+ have been any other benefits be-
cause nobody would have gone there to look at these .~V.'Pf $, •.. 

some bushes cut, there is nothing to look at. It would have been 
so far out, there would"1t have been roads leading there anyway. 
You would have need~to walk for a week to get there. I don't know 
about Tasmania,! haven~ . been there myself. Obviously from pie-
tures, it 1s much more beautiful than the Snowy. 
KH: Where J_s that? 

FP: Tasmania , . places like this . But there 
place anywhere on the Snowy that 's as nice as that. 

is no 
It would 

not have been worth saving. So :flooding it, 
farmers who owned land there who complained. 

it _>s on ly the 

Because apparently 
they didn't- get enough compensation, 
wise, beauty-wise, there ~s no loss. 

so they say. But other-
And other - water-wise, 

there is the flooding again. And as I say, even for bushwalkers, 
it takes you a week to walk there, there would~t have been 
roads there, either. They are specially built for construction. 
And then even they have been closed since, many of them, except 

re1-na/n. 
the dirt tracks~ So there is definitely a gain and no loss what-
soever . 
KH: 
today's 

Do you think that the Scheme could be built today, in 
climate, with opposition groups, and so on? Do YOU 

think that such a Scheme would get o:ff the ground today? 
MRS P: But there was trouble, wasn't there, origina lly? 
FP : Well, I don't know. You see, I was relatively new in 
the country , and I didn1 f-
not compare the times. 

know about the politics, so I could 

MRS P : But I would say there would be trouble ..... . 
FP : say . I reckon today's politicians would 
be incapable of organising something like this - I think so . 
Aga i n, I did"'+ know the politicians in those days , see . I was 
only h ere a few years, fairly new in the country . But they had 
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technical problems then, and perhaps now they would have them 

too. You see, Eucumbene Dam, which was the first in the Scheme, 
was started of:f by the Sydney - what was it called now - New 
south Wales Works Department, I think. 
KH: Or was it Water Cons~ation and Irrigation? 
FP: Could be that too. But some mob, and they couldn'.~ 
complete it all. They had some real serious problems. That was 
before the Snowy was started, anyhow. And the Snowy completed 
it then. And they also build it at the wrong spot, or they 

started building it at a different spot at the beginning. And by 
the way, YOU can see that when you fly over it, it> s obvious . 
And another place is Murray Two power station, too. 
They started excavating at the wrong place. 
KH: Did they? 
FP: 

started . 
You fly over and you see that :funny tip where they 

And then half a kilometre further east, I suppose, that 
is where the present one is. 
KH: 

FP: 
KH: 

I think I ve driven there. Yes, the lower one. 
Yes, on ly a few kilometres from Khancoban. 
Yes. 

FP: It 
1 

sin a trench, the power station !sin a trench, 
And before you get in there - maybe one isn1

~ aware on the road, 
but from the aeroplane you will see it as clear as anything. 

KH: Do YOU think I mean, the Scheme was sort of a post-
wa r thing . It attracted migrants from all over the place . do 
You th i nk that it was one of the foundation stones of the New 
Australia, i f You like, the new multi -cultural Australia? 
,So many people , so many thousands o:f people came through, 
MRS P: Well, I would say so . 
KH: The first thing they knew about Australia was the Snowy 
Mountains, in a sense , and the work they did ther e, was sort of 
the gateway through. And the n they moved on elsewhere. 
FP : Yes. 
MRS P: A terrible lot are in Canberra. 
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KH: 
MRS P: 
KH: 
MRS P: 

Yes. 
Was your father on the Snowy Scheme? 

No. 
Oh, he wasn't.KJ-1:Like, I >ffi asking more about the place 

of the Scheme in our sense of national identity, or in the post-
war reconstruction. 

MRS P: Well, it was the start, wasn't it, really.of migration 
t o Australia from overseas, from Europe. 

KH: Well, it was a big phase. There had been migrations 
before, but this was a particularly big one. 
MRS P: 
the1y? 

Well, they were enlisting people from Europe, 
.YP V. ~'l '1 .+no..+? )or -the.. Sn o hJ 'j Sc J.. m~ . 

weren't 

FP: Like Jennings did, the Snowy did the same. 
MRS P: They went to Europe. We had several people 
KH : The Jennings building firm . 
FP: Yes, the Snowy, they had what, 700 or something, German 
carpenters or something. Or 1300, I don't remember. Somebody 
wrote a book about it - for Jennings here in Canberra, to build 
government houses. The Snowy did the same. They recruited them 
there and then and brought them over. 
them. 

Paul Sehr ('Ader was one of 

MRS P: And you know we met - I cannot think of his name, the 
friend of Nicol e 's, that German guy. 
FP: Oh yes, yes. 

know really. 
A few hundred of them. But anyway, 

I haven'/- thought about it. 
feel nationalistic like that, you know. Perhaps it gav e 
Australian industry confidence, that it could be done here. 

well, 

They, in future, might bui ld a similar p r oject of that size , as 

t hey say on these BHP ads, Northwest Shelf- what do they say - it 
is three times the s i ze of the Snowy Mountains Scheme or 
whatever. Whatever tha t size means. You know, you can twist 
statistics anyway you like . And so maybe that was the beginning , 
becau se that was the fir s t large project built here, wasn't it? 
KH : I think so . 
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It took a lot of design planning, design, and all this, 
to get it altogether. And mind you, all the early design was 
done by the United States Bureau of Reclamation. I have seen the 
drawings there. I worked on the drawingS still, from the United 
states Bureau, and Tennessee Valley Authority what was it now 
they run the Niagara Falls power station, and all that too . 
It is the Tennessee Valley Authority, I think they call them-
selves. 
them. 
MRS P: 

They designed Happy Jack's Dam .....•... were designed by 

You 1 ,ve probably still got the maps, see, Frank 
is a great map collector. 

FP: Oh, the ma ps. I am talking about the design, the civil 
design and all that, and specifications. 
even bother changing the titles of it. 
Just the sh,.rr,p '' ~l'Y\~ n_. "', P~op_e •.+~. 0 f ~MA" 

But the Snowy didn~ 

It~ still there like that. 
01"1 :t·. 

KH: So that was the original big technical input? 
FP : Yes. 
incapable here . 

That started it off, because obviously they were 
And apparently they have similar schemes there, 

and they might have been copies, just a few alterations of dimen-
sions, perhaps. 
KH: 

Brothers. 
FP: 

KH : 
FP: 

MRS P: 

Yes. the Snowy Scheme,! think, helped to launch Thiess 

Yes. 

That was an Australian firm. 
That ?s right. 

Thiess is origin a lly from Brisbane. One of his sons 
was killed on the Snowy Scheme. 
KH: 
MRS P: 

How was he killed? 

A freak accident. He was standing, wasn't he, on a 
hil l , a nd what came and hit him ? 
FP: They were blasting, or something, a rock or something. 
MRS P: A tree. Thiess originated in Yeronga in Brisbane. 
FP: But about Thiess, I mean, you come to speak to various 
People employed there, you go together o n the bus or some where . 
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And a major contract supervisor, he was supervising. I think. 
the rock fill, because Thiess had a particular contractor, and 

instead of giving him the ........ they have all that old World 

War Two yank army junk trucks they bought up cheap, and they were 
still runnin9 them, and they were breaking down all the time and 
they could•"'+- fulfil their quotas. You see they couldn~ keep 
up with the contract. They had to deliver so many thousand yards 

of dirt here and there, and the inspectors were checking up on 
them. and he said he was fed up with them. And anyway, I know 

for sure they got another contract after that, so they must have 
kept up with their quotas. 
KH: I ive generally finished with questions. I can have a 
look _ . at some photographs. But I just have a coupLe more. 
Can I ask each of you what was your best experience and what was 

your worst experience, if you can Can you single out -!I mean, 
you may not be able to single out anything at a ll. 

MRS P: All in all, I liked living - it was a good life, I~ 
~ 1 o~ the Snowy, all in all, wouldn't you? 

KH: What was the worst thing that happened to you? 
MRS P : Nothing bad, I don ' t think, happened. that I can think 
of . You were in hospital once, but I mean, - one of the children 
fractured a ligament skiing, and one broke an arm. But,I mean, 
you couldA 1-t say it was a terribly bad experience, could you1 
really? 
FP: 

Nothing traumatic, really. 
Well, to me, nothing ever happen s . good or bad. Life 

is one big bore. 
KH: 
FP: 

KH : 

MRS P: 
really . 

FP: 

YOU know. 
ahead . 

Big bore? 
Yes, bore. 

Now youi re being facetious. 
Yes, very . No, I~ say they were good years. 

No, you can't think back and say, blah, blah, blah, 
It' .s living in the past , isn't it? Better things are 
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KH: Good, thank you very much. 
(Look,~ o.t -pt-,c:+osJ 
MRS P: That, for instance, was our house. winter 1964. Now, 
under that flag was buried a car, and it stayed there all winter. 
And the flag was there so that the snowcats wouldn'-t-
FP: The snow plough, wouldn'~ damage it, right? 
MRS P: It was a darn nuisance, of course, when the snow melted 
the roof of the car was completely scratched to pieces from -
people used to ski over the top. That ~s just after a bliz-
zard. That looks like the same photo of the house. That s the 
mess; the recreation hall. 
KH: Have you any photos of you at work or - - -
MRS P: Clearing the roof of the mess. That 1s ...... group con-
trol centre. 
F'P: Oh, there Js one there, somewhere. 
MRS P: They were painting it, you can see they were painting 
it the previous summer. 
FP: Painting it? 
MRS P: Yes, look at all the different colours. Obviously, it 
was in the process of being painted, Frank, it never looked like 
that. 
FP : 

MRS P: 
KH : 

You can'!:'_ tell me - - -
Yes, of course . 

You mean to say the cracks were - - -
MRS P : Yes , they were painting it. And the.y never finished it 
before winter. 
FP: I don't recall that. Yes, the fellows are up there 
shovelling the snow off the roof. 
MRS P: The garage after it had been cleared . Frank and a 
friend did it three times and each time - - -
FP: That ·,s the back of the house where we were, there. 
MRS P: That 's the house, from the top of the Land Rover. 
KH : This is a ll 16 4 ? 
MRS P: Yes . This i s the school. Tha t l s the street sign, but 
that ls the school. 
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FP: 

MRS P : 
FP: 

Isn't that the school door? 

No, that 1 s the corner. 
That 1 s from work, there . Yes, that 1 s the guy, Norm 

O 'Neill(?) and myself, that 7 sat the Cabramurra diesel power 
station . And do you see the fence, the top of the fence, 6 :foot 

fe nce here? You see, it ' s just the top sticking out. The rest 

is all flat s n ow. 
MRS P: It 1 _s not you, it J .s the guy who found the wombat. 

FP: Oh yes, that' s right. I took the photo. 

MRS P: I can~ think of his name, not that it matters. 

KH: 
CJoc,: ·( ,.; 7 

What a contrast. And I just noticed wombat, oh my God! 
That , ·.s Australia all over , isn't it? 

MRS P: That ) s right. That 1 s slightly higgledy-piggledy. by 

the look o:f it. Frank always built a nice snowman . In fact we 
Alway s a used to have Pioneer buses come and stop. See here? 

beauty. 
FP : 

Photos are a bit messy. 
Well, they ' re better than yours, aren 't they ? Yours 

are all floating around in a pillow case . 
photo album, don't you remember? 

No, Li sa gave me a 

FP: Yes, but you haven't stuck them in. That J s work . 
Mr s P : Jindabyne . 
FP : Yes, that 7 .s during commissioning te s ting. Oh that I s 
- the pipe collapsed. 
VH : This is just below that surge tank? 
FP: 
that is. 

Yes . That ' .s three quarter inch high tensile steel, 

And that was two weeks before the official opening - -

MRS P: 

FP : 
him . 
was. 
MRS P : 

See the big boss scratching his head . 

That is Wally She llsh~n .. , - I don ' t know if you know 
He was the president of the Model Railways Society here, he 
I don't know, I think he died since. 

Funny, you are so correct with your spel ling , I mean, 
after writing manual s , and you have got 'collapsed ' with one 'l'. 
That hits me in the eye every time. 
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KH! Wally Shellshe<.A.r - I think I rang him up some weeks 
ago. 

FP! Yes , that ) s Jindabyne. That 1 s :from the aer oplane . 
MRS P: Yes, Cooma East in the foreground . Cooma from the air . 
FP: Maybe there is something else in f ront there. 
MRS P: Oh here, Pretty Plain Hut. 
hut photos . 

Frank would have a lot of 

FP: There are a few more Jindabyne one s . 
KH ! Yes, that 1 s Jindabyne, but these are Austria. I would 
be quite interested in anything of that era, especially from the 
mountains. 
MRS P: 

Any photos of You fishing or shooting ? 

There's a nice one of Cabramurra to Kiandra cross-
country ski race 1971; Tuross Falls . 
KH : They were taken with an old Rollei .. .. . or something. 
were they? 
MRS P : 

FP: 
KH: 
FP: 
KH : 
FP: 
MRS P : 
KH: 
FP: 
MRS P: 
swan went 
KH: 

A Voigtlander. 

A Voigtlander. I> ve still got i t . 
I notice the square format. 
Yes, 120. 

The Voigtlander has a 1 20 film too? 
Yes. 

Here is some of the alps . 
+t>i~ i s GrQ.~ 0,c,..re_, . 

Oh ,~ there )s Grey Mare Hut. 

There is where the Southern Cloud c~ash ed. 
Oh yes, the Southern Cloud, 1 965. And t hat 7 s when a 
to Cabramurra, landed in the neighbour's yard. 

) 
That s a pretty rare photo . You don't get vehicles 

::Tc,..o.; -~ 1"'"' You> re not even allowed to spit in theJw. d let n i erness anymore, 
alone drive a car to Grey Mare Hut. 

"' MRS P : That > s ;6 5 . 
KH: 

MRS P : 
Cloud . 
FP : 

Yes . My God, that is sacrilege now. 

See, the Sn owy discovered the wreckage of the Southern 

No, the guy was employed with the contractors . 
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MRS P: Oh, I )m sorry, he was . That 1s right . 

FP: 
and 
MRS P: 

And during the lunch break he went out to take photos 

But I mean, you can still thank the Snowy for it, be-

cause he was with one of the subcontractors. 
FP: Yes, but it wouldA'r matter if they never found it . 

MRS P : Oh no, 

where it ~~P.Q,q ·· 
but I suppose it is nice to know that that' s 

KH : Yes. Oh yes, i t's a major event in terms of the his-

tory of the region, I suppose. 
MRS P: There 1 s Karl, our son, with his first rabbi t. 

KH : Any of you - oh t his is I see - near Adaminaby, 
MRS P: J ) That 1 .s our son. That s his first gun. That .s going 

back a few years - that ' s a nice fish that he caught at five and 
a half years old. That would have been at Tantang~ra There 
was some nice fish at Talbingo. 
FP: Oh yes. 
KH: 
FP : 

I haven ' t seen any of you yet. 
I used to take the photos. Oh, 

Pond 
these are Tumut~Dam, 

MRS P: There wou l d be some of you in there, probably . These 
are old ones, Frank where is it? 
FP: These are various ones along the Khancoban-Cabramurra 
Road just litle dams . rt' .s written there, anyway, Junction 

. ?~f..t-. 
KH: Oh yes, r' . ve been there in winter . Yes, I ') ve s kied 
down to there. 
MRS P: And the bridge was blown up, I can remember, the day 
after that photo, ~ do you remember here? 
FP : Jindabyne, yes. Just wait, one at a time. 

ft-oS<l. ,:,f 
KH : 0\ fvo1. ~0 t shots · just like -,.. me and my brothers 

' and sisters. That) s all Austria, Austria . The•y r, .. .. nice 
prints . 

MRS P : They are, aren't they? 
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KH: Yes, They have kept very well. Sometimes old prints 
like this go yellow because they~e not fixed properly. But 
these are really good . Did you do these yourself? 
FP : No . 

KH: 
that. 

FP : 

Oh, there) s that one again . I am quite fascinated by 
The forces at work must have been incredib l e. 

We have an eyewitness there, an eyewitness account . 
There was an Italian subcontractor just building the wall up on 
top there. It snot there now, I would think. 7 It s there now, 

there, this wall where they have the p l aques. 
And he was just working there when it happened. And,, well, there 
was am emergency shutdown in the power station. r was operatingP) 

- C ,-C\ f 't- ( ") • the • • • • • • • • .·. and according to him, he said, "She went this way 
and she went that way, and then she stayed that way . " Like a 
beer can apparently, it went in and out a few times and then it 
stayed that way . 
KH: Incredible . And this suggests that you r~uly need a 
surge tank which is as long as this, even with this - r mean, 
this seems to be just a memorial more than anything else . 
FP : No, wel l , it maybe, well, doubles this one . But the 
reason for that was that the pipe is reduc.ed in diameter , going 
in ) there, YOU cant see it, just after the fault, it is narrow-
i ng down, and that caused the restriction , to prevent enough air 
from being inhaled, You see, the water goes up and down and up 
and down al l the time, especially during start-up . And then on 
shut-down, the water rushed madly back, and it didn'~ allow it 
to flow in quickly enough through the orifice, through the nar -
rowing, and that caused a partial vacuum and sucked the pipe 

And they put empty vacuum valves in the sections there after 
in. 

this, of course. 
te s ted it, too . 

Apparently it happened in Murray One when they 
They had the same trouble. You see a hole in 

there ? Just like a beer can, it brea ks i~ the corner always.just 
in there . 
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KH: Amazing. I wouldn't have believed it if you~ told 

me. But r' ve seen it now. Anything else in here that1 s 

Snowy? 

FP: 

Oh. there, s - Cabramurra to Kiandra cross-country. 
Tuross Falls, That) ·s a fire look-out at Black Jack I , 

think, isn't it? 
MRS P: Big Talbingo. 

KH: -ve never been there. That> s a dramatic view. I 

must try to get there. Oh, Buddong Falls, yes. 

FP: A :few Talbingo ones there. 

MRS p: Karl and his trout. 

FP: Oh, here are a :few. Yes, well , we had a party t here, 

you see. We are pretty well under the weather. We worked 

closely together with the Japanese, because they were the sup-

plier of the equipment, Toshiba and Mitsubishi. And the 

Japanese, of course, they like their photos, click, click, click . 

KH: 
FP: 

MRS P: 
FP: 

Yes, that is right . 
Gee, those colours are ghastly, aren't they? 

Shocking. 
I don't know if they turned that way or if they always 

were t hat bad. 
MRS P: I would think so. I would say it) s the develop-

ing, actually. 

FP: rt> s all blue. Here are a few more. Ifook the 
Japanese 
bingo. 
MRS P: 

around to the older power station where we were in Tal-
' know They didn + " then that we had others . 

That 1 s a boat that Frank built. 
KH : This is a bit of - like a mystery hunt for me, because 
I never know what people have got . 

MRS P: No. One big mess -
KH: Until I look through it and suddenly I see something 
that interests me . 
FP: Yes. Well, the same :for me, really . I haven1+- looked 
through it :for long years. 
MR s P : The launching o:f the boat . Li sa in her dirndl . 
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FP : 
MRS P: 

Her kilt, yes. No, I have seen it all, I reckon. 
. th"'t I like"photo of Frank up there. Our son took it. 

also he did one in colour, didn't he? 
100k as good as the sepia . 

But the colour does"'t 

KH: Have you got that in smaller in here somewhere? 

And 

MRS P: 
smaller . 
sepia. 

FP: 

Yes, in colour. Oh no, no. I 1 ve got it in colour, 

MRS P: 
KH : 
FP! 
KH! 

It 1 .snot nearly as good. It looks better in the 
He developed a very large one. I never saw it, did you? 

No. 

Half the size o:f the door, he said, blew it up. 
"} That _s a wedge-tail eagle, isn't it? 

nea:- lAa.,.,,,,jf\t).O~, r +hif\k, w-e She+ +t,C\+ on~. 
Yes." t attacked us. 
Really? 

FP : Yes . We were shooting rabbits there and - Karl and I -
there were rabbits everywhere. You know, sometimes you go to 
these paddocks on the :farms, they are just one hole after 
another, and you fire one shot and the country is alive, like in 
the old days before myxomatosis. That was one o:f these places. 
And we were walking along there after the first few shots, there 

were all the holes, and all o:f a sudden shshsh - it clipped me by 
the ear, it went between the two o:f us. And I had the combina-
tion shotgun rifle, and I let him have it with the shotgun after 
being so cheeky. 
KH: It must have had a ne s t nearby. It .must have been 
wanting to protect something. be interested in copying 
one of those . Can I take t hat out of there and borrow it? 
MRS P: 
1968. 

KH: 
Richards 

rt> s written on the back, there you a re, February 

Terrific. The collection of photos that Cynthia 
Cynthia, Bill Pa~rick's daughter, still had, was all 

in a brown bag, and she just sort of dropped it on the t ab l e 
and t he corners were bent. I got the best out o:f them but they 

very well looked after . 
MRs P: I can well imagine . 
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FP : A pity. 

KH: Which is a pity , yes. There were some others in here. 

MRS p : But the se are p r etty good :for 68 . 

KH : I ' ll say, t h ey J re terrific . 

MRS P : Bu t I have got a :feeling you always use d to get them 

developed - not Kodak - what was t he o t her roll name, you would 

always get - - -
FP : 

MRS P: 
KH: 

MRS P: 

used 
FP : 

I l ford. 
It might be marked on the back , 
Very good , these are very good. 
I know we used always to go to a certain chemist who 

It says Kodak paper . 

MRS P: 

bought Kodak 

That1 s Kodak. But I know you didn't - you never 

films, that ] s what it was. mcdt-Lrs, 
FP : 

film . 
KH : 

FP : 
MRS P: 

No, Ilford I always bought.D~ t he paper that not the 
" 

But you haven1t-

No . 

got the negat i ves any more? 

No , I would say, about :five, ten years ago, you had a 

big clean up and 
FP: 

them. 

I have a few negatives, but I am too lazy to look at 
Some of the real l y good photos , I kept some negatives , the 

rea l ly good ones, I thought . 

KH : That one s stuck in, I think . .FP: Because that is our 

collec tion . 

KH : My word. You never know , t here might be someone else -

FP : We might- get some money out of it. 

KH : Yes. They' ce terrific . I mean, that's a marvellous 

collection there . 

MRS P : 

KH: 

MRS P : 

Beautiful ly developed there . They were done in Cooma . 

A nice cream i n that paper . 
Aren't they lovely o l d bui l dings? 
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FP: That 1 s a beautiful photo of t hat bou l der, isn't it? 
MRS P: 

KH : 

Wonderful, Frank . -.-
ll,,;o.t 's Gr~j mar~ Hu-t b..ir 

You h ave got to look through a l l t hat . ,, tha t 's stuck 
in too. Leave it otherwise . I mean, I do have photos of Grey 
Mare Hut, but that one ' s just so unusual because it > s got a vw 
there. 

else . 
KH : 

I have got a :feeling, Frank, t hat that ; s i n something 

Now, there were some colour o nes back here o:f you with 
those Japanese guys, 

MRS P : , · - I was just going to show you - yes, that > s the SMA of-
fice in 1961. It 7 s a bit di:f:ferent now . 
KH: Oh, right . 

FP: That> s the same sti l l , isn't it? 
P: No , I meant the surroundings are different. MRS 

KH: Yes, they are now putting up the new b~ilding on t h e 
other side . 
MRS P: 
FP : 

Kiandra 161. 

Cabramurra. That 's the old township o n the hill. 
these the only photos of Cabramurra? 

Are 

MR s P: There might be, I think, a couple more . No, they >.ce 
army ones . 
FP : 

MRS P: 
KH: 
MRs P : 

That >.s when we :first went to Cabramurra . 
That ' s fro m t h e plane . 
Upper Tumut . . station . 
There is Perisher . 

That 7 s our house , the first house we l ived in in the 
Process o:f being moved . That ·7 s how they used to move them . 
FP: Cut them in half and a way they go. That "s 

MRS P: It ' s still t here , And these are the stairs :from the 
first houses . 
KH : That would keep your l egs fit and heart pumping. 
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MRS P: Carrying a pr~m up and down - I think that 1s a ll . , 
KH : Oh , there '>.s Rc,>"d Mountain .•• No black and whites of 

you at work? 
FP: 
KH : 
camera. 
FP: 

No. 
You 1 re a bit like my father. 

Lots of photos of us, but 
I ~ma bit camera shy, 

He was always behind the 

MRS P: That ridge was blown up the next day or the next week, 
KH: 

FP: 

KH 
MRS P: 
KH : 
MRS P: 

At Jindabyne, yes. Is that you? 
Yes, and the two offsprings. 

That 7 s quite a good one, in its historical setting. 
They ·, _re only of the children C1.t Cabramurra. , . 

There! s a photo of you . 
That >_s when they were both in 

Well, actually she was out of it. One of them was out of it, and 
we just put it on for the photo, I can remember. 
KH : Can I borrow that one? 
MRS P: That J .s old, heavens above. 
KH: Yes, well, it ~s sort of- and that one of Jindabyne, 

".f\'IRS f',: · the earlier one at the Jindabyne bridge. ~- ~hat would have been 

I can tell you the year if you want it. Lisa is 25 and she was 6 

then , so 19 years ago, isn't it? 

FP: But itJ s recorded, anyway, when the bridge was 
demolished. 
MRS P: 
KH: 
it? 

MRS P: 

KH: 
MRS P: 
KH: 
dabyne. 
FP : 

Oh yes, it would be. 
19 years ago,so, 1967 .. . Sorry , 

Karl with the car, yes. 

Can I pu~ it on the back? 
Yes. 

• I its Karl on th e left, is 

Left to right: Karl, Frank, Lisa , Pirchmoser, at Jin-
~s 

Yes, t hat must have been just before it~blown up . 
Yes , I remember seeing it on television, the 109 (on-

struction Squad~1which wa s the Snowy accompaniment of CMF then . . J 

frank Pirchmose~ 
1698 

TheY had a practice run and blew it. 

MRS P: While YOU ve got your pen in your hand I suppose we 
might as well get your autograph in your book. 
sound? 

How does that 

KH: Oh yes, that 1 s easy . 
MRS P: I have got so many - might as well, Lisa bought it for 
her father . 

KH: Yes, why not? 
MRS P: You see, Frank's book, you wouldr'l1t want to autograph 
manuals, would you? 

KH: It would,,'t be appropriate. 
MRS P: No. I mean, he would;--.' t If I remember, she had 
trouble getting that book. Where did she buy it? The Canberra 
Times. Were you selling them from the Canberra Times? 
KH: Yes, they had a special. 
MRS P: 
bought it? 
KH : 

That >s right. I 

Yes, it must have 
Yes, that 1 s right. 

can remember. Was it Christmas she 
#)e... 

been~year it came out, was it? 
It '> s now only in paperback . . . That's 

just about - that 7 s pretty good. 
recreation activities. 

I have got some of your 

FP: 

KH : 
MRs P: 
FP: 

KH: 

But that 7 s not me, mind you. 
No, no, that 1 s your son. 

Yes. But, I mean , there is none of you, is there? 
No. 

They 1 ·re the sort of shots of the Snowy you didn't 
take because they were n'I:- interested in that sort of thing. 
MRS P : • •· Here ) s one of him standing - oh, that 
glasses on. That 7 s only last year . 
FP : 
Jan says 
MRS P: 
KH : 
MRS P: 
KH: 

You see, that 1 s why I didn'~ 
it )s terrible. 

take photos o f myself. 

That >s the best o ne of Frank, the one Karl took . 
You have\""\'~ got a small one of that, though? 
Yes, only in colour. 

Yes, but that can be - I would ,"'' t- mind having a look 
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at that one . And do you mind signing - - -

FP : I did sign. 
KH: Oh, YOU have a lready. Gr eat - 3 November, I a m a bit 
late, aren ' t I ? 
FP: Yes, · I thouglityou wou l d never come . 
KH: Oh no, I just had othe r people to int erview and other 
things came in the way . 
MRS P : That ) of dogs behind the t r ee . s one our 
FP: That } Mount Tantangara, Kiandra there, .s on near 
KH : Yes, I ., ve been very busy doing some interviews and 
also trying to finish this other book , you see, this book of long 
journeys . 
F'P : 

So it takes a while to get around to ever ybody. 
Yes, of course. 

MRS P: That J s another one ... I like the snow on the trees 
here . Everyone looks for something different . Typical l y 
Australian, isn ' t it? 
KH : Oh yes. Where -:._s that? Where is that little place? 
FP: 
KH: 

FP : 

That is also up there, at Mount Tantangara . 
Oh that 7 s Tantangara Hut. 
They call it Harvey's Hut . That ) s one name . 

KH : Harvey Palfrey, yes. He >s the guy who is supposed to 
have built that, I t h ink. 
FP: Yes . 
MRS P: 
him . 

Oh, Harvey Palfrey . We could tel l you some ta l es about 
What was it , the Ho l y - what do you call those ho l y coins 

he used to put in - was it the phone box, or something, when his 
phone got cut off at Kiandra. ') 

You ve heard some tales about 
Harvey Palfrey , or we h ave , haven ' t we? 
KH: Di d you m·eet him? Yes, he was around, wasn 't he? 
MRS P: Yes, of course . An d Fountains Lodge. Have you heard 

f F 
. , 

o ounta.1.ns. t hey used to own the lodge there . t hink 
of their names . 
FP: Fountains, wasn ' t i t? 
MRS P: Yes . t heir Christian names - Fountains Lodge . Do YOU 
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remember it was t here in our time? Great fr i ends of . . . . . . 
F'P: 

MRS P: 

FP! 

KH! 
ing . 

fP: 

MRS P: 

FP! 
KH: 
this . 
MRS P: 

them . 
KH : 

Down at Delegate . 
De l egate or Dalgety? 
De.J,egate. 

. .. .... ... kept a dog i n t h e r e . That ~s pretty amaz-

Yes, oh yes. 

Was it Rudle? 
Yes . 

He worked up there. He loved t h e snow . 

I don't think these will come up so we ll , copied from 
:> There s too much contrast, I think to 

If you wanted t he n e gatives , Kar l wou l d stil l have 
It )_s up to YOU . You ~ve probab l y got enough. 

Yes , well yes, I do . 
MRS P: And besides, Tant angara is~t 
talking about, anyhow, is it? 

in t h e area that you are 

FP: It is, Tantangara Dam . 
KH: Oh yes . It is just that - yes, o h yes . Well, thank 
yo u very much. I think that might do for today, 
FP : 

KH: 
FP: 

KH: 

It was a long session . 
Yes . 

It is tiresome, just talking even , isn' t it? 
After a while, yes, that is right. 




